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Group Company Secretary Certificate

In terms of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act, | certify that, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, Astral has, in respect of the financial year ended 30 September 2020, lodged with CIPC all
returns and notices required of a public company in terms of the Companies Act and that all such
returns and notices are true, correct and up to date.

Leonle Marupen
Group Company Secrelary
11 November 2020

Preparation and publication of the Annual Financial
Statements

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 that were published on 11
Pecember 2020, available on the Group's website www.astralfoods.com as well as contained in this
Integrated Report, have been prepared under the supervision of the Chief Financial Officer, Daan
Ferrelra CA{SA).

Daan Ferrelra
Chief Financial Officer
11 November 2020
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Directors’ responsibilities and approval
For the year ended 30 September 2020

The Board is required by the Companies Act to maintain adequate accounting records and is
responsible for the content and integrity of the Annual Financial Statements of Astral and related
financial information included In this Integrated Report and published on the Group's website
www.astralfoods.com. It is Its responsibility to ensure that the Annual Financial Statements fairly
present the financial position of the Company and the Group at the end of the financial year and the
results of thelr operations and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with IFRS and the
requirements of the Companies Act. The external auditor is engaged to express an independent
opinion on the Annual Financlal Statements.

The Annual Financial Statements have been audited by the independent accounting firm, PwC, which
was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of all
meetings of the shareholders, the directors and its commiitees. The directors belleve that all
representations made to the iIndependent auditors during the audit were valid and appropriate.

The Annual Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS and are based upon
appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial
control established by the Group and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control
environment. To enable the directors to meet this responsibility, the directors set standards for
internal control almed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost-effective manner. The standards
include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.
These controis are monitored throughout the Group and all employees are required to maintain the
highest ethical standards in ensuring the Group's business is conducted in a manner that in all
reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the Group Is on
identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Group.

While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Group endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that
appropriate Infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management
that the system of internal controls provides reasonable assurance that the financlal records may be
relied on for the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements. However, any system of internal
financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow forecast for the year ending 30 September 2021
and, in the light of this review and the current financial position, they are satisfled that the Company
and Group have or have access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future,

The Annual Financial Statements of the Group and Company, which have been prepared on the

going concern basis, were approved by the Board on 11 November 2020 and were signed on Its
behalf by

CES i@ DD Ferrelra
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their report which forms part of the Annual Financial Statements for the year
ended 30 September 2020.

Nature of business
The Group holds investments in companles, with their primary activities in animal feed pre-mixes,
manufacturing of animal feeds, broller genetics, the production and sale of day-old broiler chicks and

hatching eggs, Integrated breeder and broller production operations, abattoirs and the sale and
distribution of various key brands.

Listing information

Astral Foods Limited, is listed on the main board of the JSE under the share code: ARL. The
Company’s ISIN number is ZAEQ00029757

Registered address
The Company's registered address is;

82 Koranna Avenue, Doringkloof, Centurion, 0157. Postnet Suite 278, Private Bag X1028,
Doringkioof, 0140,

Financlal results

The results for the year are set out in the Annual Financial Statements presented on pages 73 to £8
of this Integrated Report. The Annual Financial Statements are also published on the Group's wabsite
www.astralfoods.com.

Share capltal
Detall of share capital is reflected under note 21 of the Annual Financial Statements.

In terms of the Group’s share incentive scheme, no options were exercised during the year.
(2019: 34 850)

Dividends

The following ordinary dividends were declared:

2020 2019

L R’000 __R'000

Interim dividend: Nil (2019: 475 cents per share) - 203 758

Less: Dividends received on treasury shares held by a subsidiary - | (19 421)
Final dividend: (No 38) of 775 cents per share declared post year- '

end (2019: 425 cents per share) 332 647 182 419

Less: Dividends recelved on treasury shares held by a subsidiary {31 686) {17 376)

| Total dividend at 775 cents per share (2019: 800 cents per share) 300 960 349 380

Property, vehicles, plant and equipment

Refer to note 11 of the Annual Financlal Statements for detalls.
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Directors

The names of the directors who currently hold office are set out in note 32 of the Annual Financial
Statements. The directors beneficlally and non- beneficlally hold 214 088 (2019: 186 825) ordinary
shares In the Company — see note 33 for details.

During the period under review, no contracts were entered Into which directors or officers of Astral
had an interest and which would affect the business of the Group.

Details of directors’ emoluments and related payments can be found in note 32 of the Annual
Financlal Statements.

There was no change In the beneficial and non-beneficial shareholding of directors since 30
September 2020 and the date of approval of the Annual Financlal Statements on 11 November 2020.

Share incentlve scheme
As at 30 September 2020 no options in respect of any shares remained outstanding.
Repurchase of shares

Astral has requested shareholders to grant a general authority to buy back its issued ordinary shares,
however, no repurchases were made during the period.

Subsequent events

A final dividend of 775 cents per share has been declared on 11 November 2020. The payment of the
dividend will be on 18 January 2021. No other events took place between year-end and the date of
this Report that would have a material effect on the Annual Financlal Statements as disclosed.
Litigation statement

There are no current, pending or threatened legal or arbitration proceedings that may have, or have
had In the previous 12 months, a material effect on the Group’s financial position.
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Material changes

There have been no material changes In the financlal or trading position of the Group between
30 September 2020 and the date of this Integrated Report.

Annual Financial Statements

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 are available for inspection
at Astral's registered address. These Annual Financlal Statements have been audited in compliance
with the requirements of Section 30(2)a of the Companies Act.

Going concern

Performance

As reflected in Astral's results, most of the Group's businesses reported satisfactory results under
tough market conditions.

Profit for the first half of the ysar at R371 milllon was marginally higher compared to the same period
for the prior year(2018: R370 million),whereas the profit for the full year at R 561 million was down on
the previous year's R R847 million. The Covid-19 related hard lockdown of the economy during the
second half of the financial year had an impact on revenue, however as the lockdown moved to
level 1, the revenue siream and sales volumes are in a process to recover. There was no disruption in
the operating activities of tha group during the lockdown period due to the group being classifled as
an essentlal service provider. No bad debts were written off and apart from R41million direct costs, no
other abnormal costs related to Covid-19 were incurred.

Solvency and liquidity

As at 30 September 2020, the Consolidated Statement of Financlal Position reflects total equity of
R4 122.3 milllon. The Group has access to R1.1 billlon of facllitles at various banks and remalnsd In a
net surpius cash position throughout the year despite the impact of the lockdown. The net surplus
cash position was in a upward trajectory towards the end of the financial year, a trend which
continues post balance sheet date. The dividend that was declared post year-end of 775 cents per
share will be funded from existing surplus cash resources.

The major capital expenditure on the expansion of the processing facilities at Festive has been
completed which will result in lower capital expenditure related cash ouiflows for the 2021 financial
year. It is expected that the Group will continue to have a strong balance sheet for the foreseeable
future.

Concluslon

On the basis outlined above, the directors consider it appropriate for the going concern basis to be
adopted in preparing the Annual Financial Statements.

The Annual Financlal Statements of the Group and Company were approved by the directors on 11
Novernber 2020 and were signed on their behalf by

Chris Schutte Daan Ferreira
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financlal Officer
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Audit and Risk Management Committee Report

Dear shareholders

Our Audit and Risk Management Committee is a formally constituted sub-committee of the Board and
in addition to having specific statutory responsibilities to the shareholders Iin terms of Section 84 of the
Companies Act, it assists the Board by advising and making submissions on financial reporting,
oversight of the risk management process and internal financial controls, external and internal audit
functions and statutory and regulatory compliance..

The committee is satisfied that It has fulfilied its responsibllities as detailed in its Mandate and Terms
of Reference for the 2020 financial year.

On behalf of the Audit and Risk Management Committee

Dlederik Fouche
Chalrman
11 November 2020

Risk management
We are committed to the following risk management action plan:

* identifying the risks to which the Group Is exposed;

+ identifying the most effective ways of eliminating or mitigating risk exposures as far as is
reasonably practical;

* insuring against catastrophic incidents and other losses beyond our self-insurance capacity; and

* minimising in the long-term, the total cost of rigk.

We apply an enterprise-wide risk management approach, involving all levels of management, with
assistance from outside consultants for assessing insurable rigks.

The senior management at each operation is responsible for the development and implementation of
a sound risk control programme based on the Group’s risk control standards. The integrity of the risk
control programme is regularly independently monitored by appointed risk analysts.

Internal audit

We have established an independent, objective and effectlve Internal Audit Department governed by
a charter approved by the Board. The intemal audit function reports to the CEO and has unfettered
access to the Chalrman of the Board and the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee.

The role of Internal audit is to review compliance with internal controls, systems and procedures. The
Board Is satisfied that the internal controls are adequate to safeguard the assets, prevent and detect
errors and fraud, ensure the accuracy and completeness of accounting records and the preparation of
reliable Annual Financlal Statements.

The Internal Audit Department Is staffed by qualified and experlenced Intemnal auditors. The annual
internal audit programme Is approved by the committee and all significant findings, together with steps
taken to rectify lapses in internal control, are reported at every committee meeting.
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The internal audit function is reviewed by the committee to satisfy Itself of the independence of the
Internal Audit Department. The appointment and removal of the Head of Internal Audit is a matter for
the committes in consultation with management.

In terms of the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing the Internal
Audit Department will be subject to an independent quality assurance assessment during the 2021
financlal year.

Information Technology (IT)
The Board has delegated responsibility for IT to the committee, but retains overall accountabllity.

An IT Charter, aligned to the King V™ Report has been implemented. The IT strategy Is reviewed by
the committee and by the Board. The IT Charter can be viewed on our website, www.astralfoods.com.

Management has the responsibility for the management of IT and the governance framework which
includes:

* Three IT Steering Commiitees to monitor and manage IT governance.

+ [T policies and procedures to reguiate the management of all IT functions.

* Relevant standards and processes that are subject to audits, reviews and benchmarks.

* Policies and procedures to govern the active directory and exchange which has been
outsourced.

* |T best practices are Implemented.

All IT acquisitions fall within the same capital approval processes as other capital expenditure projects
and would thus, based on value, be submitted to the Board for approval.

A formalised disaster recovery programme Is In place to ensure the minimum disruption in the event
of disaster.

Periodic Independent assurance Is obtained on the effectiveness of technology and information,
including the outsourced infrastructure,

Integrated Report
The committee oversees the compilation of the Integrated Report, and In particular:

» Takes cognisance of all factors and risks that may impact on the Integrity of the Integrated
Report including matters that may predispose management to present a misleading picture,
significant judgments and reporting decisions made, monitoring or enforcement actions by a
regulatory body and any evidence that brings Into question previousiy published information,
forward- looking statements or information.

« Reviews for reliability, the disclosure of sustainability In the Integrated Report.

* Recommends to the Board whether or not to engage an external assurance provider on material
sustainabliity lssues,

* Recommends the Integrated Report for approval by the Board,

+ Considers whether the external auditor should perform assurance procedures on Interim results
or be engaged for any non-audit assignments.

The committee recommended to the Board to continue not to publish a Summarised Integrated
Report or engage an external assurance provider to confirm material elements of the sustalnability
part of the Integrated Report. This decision was based on the fact that sustainabllity reporting formed
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part of the budget process and Is reported on by business units and approved by the Executive
Directors. This approach will be reviewed every year. We have appointed a full-time Sustainabllity
Manager who is responsible for sustainability within the Group.

Key focus areas - 2020

Dutles

In execution of its compliance dutles during the 2020 financial year, the committee:

nominated the re-appointment of PwC as external auditor and E J Gerryts as the designated
auditor for the 2021 financial year, after satisfying Iltself through enquiry that PwC are
independent as defined in terms of the Companies Act. This will be E J Gerryts third year as
designated auditor of the Group;

confirmed that PwC and the designated auditor, E J Gerryts, are accredited by the JSE;

at the end of each meeting during the year, met with the external auditor where management
was not present: no matters of concern were raised;

determined the fees to be paid to PwC as disclosed on page [...] of this Report and their terms of
engagement;

noted the non-audit services policy which determines the nature and extent of any non-audit
services which the external auditor may provide to the Group;

pre-approved any proposed contract with PwC for the provision of non-audit services to the
Group;

received no complaints relating to the accounting practices of the Group, the content or auditing
of its Annual Financial Statements, the internal financlal controls of the Group, or other related
matters;

reviewed the draft Audited Annual Financial Statements and Integrated Report, the preliminary
profit announcement and interim statements;

met with the external auditor to discuss the Annual Financial Statements prior to their approval
by the Board;

reviewed the valuation of goodwill before recommending any impairment to the Board for
approval;

reviewed the reports of the internal audit and the providers of the Tip-Offs Anonymous hot-line;
approved the internal audit plan for the year;

monitored and provided oversight of the internal audit function;

confirmed that there had not been significant changes in the management of Astral during the
external audit firm’s tenure;

made submissions to the Board on matters concerning the Group's accounting policies, financlal
controls, records and reporting;

concurred that the adoption of a going concern premise In the preparation of the Annual
Financial Statements was appropriate; and

recommended to the Board the declaration of a dividend.

The objectives of the committee were met during the year under review.

Oversight of risk management

During the year, the committee has:

received assurances that the process and procedures followed in terms of risk management are
adequate to ensure that financial risks are identified and monitored;
satisfied itself that the following areas have been appropriately addressed:

~ financlal reporting risks;
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= Internal financial controls;

~ fraud risks as they relate to financlal reporting; and

-~ IT risks as they relate to financial reporting.
* reviewed tax and IT rigks, In particular how they are managed;
+ reviewed the outcome of the audit by PwC of selected IT general controls; and
+ received assurances that the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on operations have been

appropriately addressed including the following:

- health, safety and other HR considerations;

-~ liquidity and going concern;

= impaiment and valuations;

- governance implications;

- strateglc and economic implications;

— regulatory implications;

— Impact on internal controls; and

= technology implications.

Internal financial controls
The committee has:

* reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal financial controls including receiving
assurance from management, internal audit and external audit;

* reviewed significant issues raised by the external auditor in their reports; and

* reviewed policies and procedures for preventing and detecting fraud.

Based on the processes and assurances obtained, the committee belleves that the significant internal
financial controls are effective. Where weaknssses In specific controls have been Identified,
management undertook to implement appropriate corrective actions to mitigate the weakness so
identifled.

Legal and reguiatory compllance

The committee has complled with all applicable Companies Act regulations and JSE Listings
Requirements.

External audit

Based on processes followed and assurances recelved, the committee has no concerns regarding the
external auditor's independence and approved the following fees for work done by them:

- 2020 2019
0N R'000

Audit fees 7001 6584
Non-audit services an| 289
| General expenses ' 129 | 189
| Under provision B 285 386
| Total _. 7 686 7448 |

Any non-audit services to be rendered by the external auditor are normally initiated by the business
units following a formal process that is approved by the CFO. A formal policy regarding the pre-
approval of non-audit services are followed and non-audit services performed during the financial year
included:
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Division Non-audit services Nature

Astral Operations Ltd 2018. EVA incentive review Tax consulting services
Astral Operations Ltd PAYE: VDP and directive assistance Tax consulting services
Meadow Standerton (Pty) Assistance with responding to SARS' Tax consulting services
Lid reguests

Astral Operations Ltd _Long-Term Incentive policy review Tax consulting services
Astral Foods Ltd Tax consulting, planning and structuring Tax consulting services

Based on our satlsfaction with the results of the activities outlined above, we have recommended the
re-appointment of PwC to the Board and the shareholders. Consideration was also given to the length
of PwC's tenure when making the recommendation to the shareholders to re-appoint the firm for a
further year.

PwC has been the external auditor of Astral since listing In 2001. During 2013 a tender process was
followed whereby three audit firms, including PwC, were interviewed and where they presented thelr
services to the commiites. The committee was of the opinion that the services offered by PwC
remained the most sultable for the Group and PwC was re-appointed as exiernal auditor. The
designated audit partner is rotated every five years,

As per the new IRBA rule on Mandatory Audit Firm Rotation for auditors of all public interest entities,
as defined in section 290.25 to 290.26 of the amended IRBA Code of Professional Conduct for
Registered Auditors, an audit firm shall not serve as the appointed auditor of a public interest entity for
more than 10 consecutive financial years. Although this rule is only effective for flnancial years
commencing on or after 1 April 2023.

The committee, after discussion with management and the external audit, concurred with the key
audit matter set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on the audit of the Consolidated Annual
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 September 2020.

The committee confirms that it has received from the auditor all decision letters/explanations issued
by the independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA) or any other regulator and any summaries
relating to monitoring procedures/deficlencles issued by the auditor.

The committee was satisfled that the Consolidated Annual Financlal Statements appropriately
addressed the critical judgements and key estimates pertalning to the key audit matters contained in
the Independent Audlitor's Report, in respect of both amounts and disclosure. The committee noted
that both the consolidated and separate Annual Financlal Statements were presented falrly in all
material respects.

Financlal function and CFO review
In accordance with King v requirements, we have reviewed the expertise, resources and
experience of the Group's financial function and are satisfied that these are adequate and effective for

the forthcoming year. We have also reviewed the performance, appropriateness and expertise of the
CFO, Mr DD Ferreira, and confirm his suitabllity in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements.

Financial reporting procedures

The committee is satisfied that Astral has established appropriate financial reporting procedures, and
that those procedures are operating.

Integrated Report
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We have evaluated the Integrated Report of Astral for the year ended 30 September 2020 and based
on the information provided to the committee, consider that the Group complies in all material
respects with the requirements of the Companies Act and IFRS, and we recommend the Integrated
Report to the Board for approval.

A detalled Sustainability Report will be published on our website and extracts are reported elsewhere
in the Integrated Report.

King V™

The King IV™ Report became effective for companles with financial years starting on or after 1 April
2017. The practices underpinning the principles espoused in King IV™ are entrenched in many of
Astral's internal controis, policies and procedures governing corporate conduct. Our outcome based
approach resulted in this report evolving and Astral has applied the principles of King IV™, the detalils
of which Is set out in various sections Included in the integrated Report.

Additional items reviewed:

* commeodity procurement;
* impact of new accounting standards;
* significant accounting estimates:

= goodwill

- Dbiological assets

- post-retirement medical ald

= long-term retention plan

— EVAand PBIT bonus

Future focus areas

The following areas are considered to be future focus areas that will recelve attention In the new
financial year:

* internal audit and other assurance plans;

* Internal audit quality assurance review;

» integrity of internal control and effectiveness of risk management across the Group;
* oversight of the most significant risks within the Group;

* monitor the implementation of new IFRS standards; and

* privacy compliance.

Golng concern

We have reviewed a documented assessment, Including key assumptions, prepared by management
of the going concern status of the Group and are comfortable in our recommendation to the Board
regarding the Annual Financial Statements as well as the combined assurances contained In the
Integrated Report, that the Group will be a going concern for the next financlal perlod, at the end of
which a similar assessment will be done.
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To the Shareholders of Astral Foods Limited

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Astral Foods Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (together
the Group) as at 30 September 2020, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

What we have audited

Astral Foods Limited’s consolidated financial statements set out on pages 20 to 52 comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 September 2020;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’
Code of Prafessional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with
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the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards).

Overview

Overall group materiality

e Overall group materiality: R52,500,000, which represents 5% of the
average consolidated profit before tax.

Group audit scope

e e Full scope audits were performed over nine financially significant
components in South Africa.
Koy andit e Specified audit procedures were performed on certain account
matters balances and transactions of a fiurther two components.
e Review procedures were performed on an additional three

components and analytical review procedures were performed on
the remaining components.

| Key audit matters
o Goodwill impairment assessment.

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where the
directors made subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that
involved making assumptions and eonsidering future events that are inherently uncertain, As in all of
our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among
other matters, consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
Misstatements may arise due to frand or error. They are considered material if individually or in

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the consolidated financial statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall group materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole as set out
in the table below. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of
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our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Overall group R52,500,000.
materiality

How ive determined it | 5% of the average consolidated profit before tax.

Rationale for the We chose consolidated prafit before tax as the benchmark because, in
materiality our view, it is the benchmark against which the performance of the
benchmark applied Group is most commonly measured by users and is a generally accepted
benchmark. We used a five-year average consolidated profit before tax
figure as this is representative of the normal earnings cycle of this
industry. We chose 5% which is consistent with quantitative materiality
thresholds used for profit-oriented companies in this sector.

How we tailored our group audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the
Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

The Group has three principal reportable operating segments that align with its organisational design
namely Poultry, Feed, and Other Africa.

The Group's consolidated financial statements are a consolidation of thirty reporting components,
which make up the Group's three operating segments. Of these reporting components, we selected
nine for full scope audit testing due to their financial significance, limited to an appropriate allocation
of the Astral Foods Limited consolidated materiality. We selected a further two components where
specified audit procedures were performed on certain account balances and transactions due to these
being material to the group audit. These reporting components are all located in South Africa. Review
procedures were performed at three additional reporting components, and for the remaining
components, we performed further analytical review procedures as considered appropriate.

This together with additional procedures performed at the Group level, including testing of
consolidation journal entries and intercompany eliminations, gave us the evidence we needed for our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

In establishing the overall approach to the group audit, we determined the type of work that needed to
be performed by us, as the group engagement team, or component auditors from other PwC network
teams or firms. Where the work was performed by component auditors, we determined the level of
involvement we needed to have in the audit work at those components to be able to conclude whether
sufficient appropriate audit evidence had been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole.

‘We met with certain of the component auditors in the Poultry and Feed operating segments and
attended divisional audit committee meetings for all components as part of planning the audit, as well
as part of the completion of the audit work performed.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We communicate the key audit matters that relate to the audit of the consolidated financial statements

of the current period in the table below. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to
communicate in our report with regard to the audit of the separate financial statements of the

Company for the current period.
Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Management tested the Group’s goodwill, which
had a carrying amount of R136,135,000 as at 30
September 2020, for impairment. They
concluded that there is no impairment as the
recoverable amounts, based on value in use
(VIU) calculations, exceeded the carrying
amounts of the individual cash generating units
(CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated.
The most significant balance of goodwill related
to the Goldi/Festive CGU, which had a carrying
amount of R106,020,000 as at 30 September
2020,

In assessing goodwill for impairment,
management applied significant judgement and
assumptions in determining the VIU. These
included the following:

e Forecasting future volumes when
determining future cash flows based on
normalised operations, which
is influenced by factors that are difficult
to predict, namely changes in the
economic and financial environment,
competitor activity, regulatory
authorities’ decisions and consnmers’
behaviour in response to the economic

| Through discussion, we obtained an
understanding of the process and procedures
applied by management during their
impairment assessment of goodwill.

In respect of goodwill relating to the
Goldi/Festive CGU, we performed the following
procedures:

e We evaluated management's future
cash flow forecasts, which were based
on budgets and forecasts approved by
the board of directors. In this regard we
agreed the amounts used in the future
cash flow forecasts to the budgets and
forecasts approved by the board of
directors. No material differences were
noted; and

e We assessed the reasonableness of
management’s assumptions such as net
realisations of poultry products, broiler
feed prices, sales volumes, working
capital movements and capital
expenditures, by comparing the
assumptions to information obtained
from the South African Poultry
Association, and Gross Domestic
Product forecasts obtained from the
Industrial Development Corporation’s

forecasts. Based on the results of our
comparisons, we accepted the
assumptions used by management.

‘We compared the Group’s 2019 and 2020 actual
results to the forecasts for these years, to
identify any situations where actual results



environment;
e Growth rates;
e Discount rates;
e Broiler feed costs; and
e Selling prices of poultry products.

We considered the goodwill impairment
assessment to be a matter of most significance
to the current year audit due to the significant
judgement and assumptions applied by
management in determining the VIU of the
individual CGUs,
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achieved were significantly different from the
forecasted results. We discussed with
management the reasons for the differences
identified and inspected relevant
documentation. We noted no matters requiring
further consideration.

We tested the discount rate and growth rates
applied by management in their impairment
assessment of goodwill by performing the
following procedures:

e TUtilising our valuation expertise, we
recalculated a range of discount rates,
considering inputs for similar entities,
industry data and entity-specific data.
Where differences in discount rates
were noted, we included this in our
sensitivity analysis to consider whether
this would lead to an impairment
charge being recognised. In this regard
we did not identify any impairment to
be recognised. Based on our procedures
performed, we accepted the discount
rates used by management; and

o We assessed the reasonableness of the
long-term growth rate used by
management by comparing it to the
long-term consensus on the South
African Consumer Price Index. Based
on the results of our comparison, we
accepted the rate used by management.

We tested the mathematical accuracy of
management’s impairment assessment and
noted no material differences.

‘We utilised our valnation expertise to assess the
valuation methodology applied by management
against generally accepted valuation
methodology and against the requirements of
International Accounting Standard (IAS 36),
Impairment of Assets.

We performed independent sensitivity
calculations on management’s impairment
assessments, with respect to key assumptions,
which included the discount and growth rates,
sales volumes, net realisations of pouliry
products and broiler feed prices. We discussed
these with management and considered the
likelihood of such changes occurring, Based on
our procedures performed, we did not identify



Page |17

| any impairments to be recognised.

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the document titled “Astral Foods Limited Group Annual Financial
Statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 "and the document titled “Astral Foods Limited
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 September 2020, which includes the Directors’
Report, the Audit and Risk Management Committee Report and the Certificate by Company Secretary
as required by the Companies Act of South Africa, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the other sections of the document titled “Astral Integrated Report for the year ended 30
September 2020”, which is expected to be made available to us after that date, The other information
does not include the consolidated or the separate financial statements and our auditor’s reports
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not and will not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materiat
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if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
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therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in exiremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015,
we report that PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. has been the auditor of Astral Foods Limited for 20 years.

nmﬁméﬂ Q .

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc.
Director: EJ Gerryts
Registered Auditor
Johannesburg

13 November 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the yzar ended 30 September 2020

Page 20

2020 2019

Notes R'000 R'000
Revenue 1 14 104 281 13 4865 475
Cost of sales 2 [ 11 321 K50} { 10 856 468)
Gross profit 2782731 2629007
Administrative expenses 2 { 706 625) ( 723 290)
Distributlon costs 2 { 1034 573) { 833734}
Marketing expenditure 2 { 236 234) { 201 848)
Other Income 4 30492 15126
Other losses 5 [ 6679) { 2982)
Profit before Interest and tax 838 112 882 279
Finance income 8 28 279 41286
Finance expense 8 [ 84 547) { 10914)
Profit before tax 781 844 912 651
Tax expense 7 ( 220 610) | 2651186
Profit for the year 561 234 647 535
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax { 48 036) [ 1300] i
items that may subsequently be reclassifled to profit and loss { 22 548) a78
Currency loss on Investment loans to foreign subsidlaries ( 2718) { 414)|
Foreign currency transiation {lossygaln { 19 830)| 1202
items that wlill not be reclassified to profit or loss { 25 488) i 2178)
Re-measurement of post employment benefit obligations (note 25) 12 219 ( 3025)
Defarred tax on re-measurement of post employment beneflt obligations { 3421) 847
Changes In falr value of equity instruments [ 34 286)
Total comprehensive Income for the year 513 198 646 235
Profit for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the company 556 267 643 653
Non-controlling Interest 4 967 3882
Profit for the year 7 535
Total comprehensive Income attributable to:
Equity holders of the company 508 231 642 353
Non-controlling interest 4 967 38682
Total comprehensive Income for tha year 513198 846 235
Eamings per share attributable to the equity holders of the company during the year:
Eamings per share (cants) 8 1435 1650
Diluted eamings per share (cents) 8 1432 1658
Headiine earnings per share
Headline samings per share (cents) 9 1441 1674
Diluted headlline eamings per share (cents) 9 1438 1674
Dividends

Dividends declared In respact of the current ysar's profits (cents) 10

75




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
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at 30 September 2020
2020 2019
Notes R'000 R'000
Assots
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 2 946 643 2462 918
Intangible assets 12 55 421 59 183
Right-of-use assets 14 537 061
Goodwill 15 136 135 136 135
Financial assets at falr value through other
comprehensive income 16 121 020
3 796 280 2 658 236
Current assets
Biological assets 17 851 252 758 721
Inventories 18 861 241 691 058
Trade and other recelvables 19 t 218 007 1512 398
Current tax asset 30 595 19 717
Cash and cash equivalents 20 573 581 598 989
3 534 766 3 580 883
Total assets 7 331 046 6 230 119
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the company
Ordinary shares 21 429 429
Share premium 21 89 971 89971
Other reserves 22 { 59 596) { 40 573)
Treasury shares ( 228 111) { 204 435)
Retalned eamings 4 304 572 3938 835
4 107 265 3784 227
Non-controlling Interest 15 055 11 408
Total equity 4122 320 3 795 635
Liabliitles
Non-current liabillties
Deferred tax liabilities 23 639 482 539 421
Employee benefit obligations 24 140 730 166 179
Leases 14 365 956
1146 168 706 600
Current llablilties
Trade and other payables 26 1 556 294 1411135
Employee benefit obligations 24 263 757 254 107
Current tax liabilities 6158 25772
Leasses 14 208 057
Borrowings 27 27 453 44 115
Sharsholders for dividend 2 839 2755
2 062 558 1737 884
Total liabilities 3208 726 2 443 484
Total equity and llabilities 7 331 046 6239 119




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the vezr ended 30 Sepiember 2020

Page 22

Hen-
controlling

Attributable to ordinary sharsholdera of Astral Foods Limited Interests  Total equity

8Shars

caplial Other

and Treasury reserves Retained
premium shares (Note22) eamings Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R000
018
Balance at 1 Oclober 2018 B6751 (204435) (41451) 23889116 3729981 10 496 3740477
Profit for the year 643 663 643 6853 3gaz2 647 536
Cther comprehenalve income for the year, net of tax 878 {2178) { 1300) { 1300)
Shares issued - share options exercised 3649 3640 3649
Dividends declared and pald [ 591 758) | 561 758) [ 2970 | 584 728)
Balance at 30 Saptember 2019 90400 (204 435) (40573) 3038835 3784 227 11 408 3765 635
2020
Balance at 1 October 2019 80400 (204435) (40573) 3938835 3784 227 11 408 3785 635
Profit for the year 558 267 656 267 4 857 561 234
Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax {19 023) {25 488) { 44 511) ( 44 511)
Shares acquired in terms of restricted share
Incentive scheme {23 6786) { 23676) ( 23 676)
Dividends declared and pald { 16504 ( 165042) ( 1320) [ 186 362)
Balance at 30 September 2020 90400 (228111) (59596) 4 304 572 4 107 268 15 055 4122 320




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the y=ar ended 30 September 2020
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2020 2019

Notes R'000 R000
‘Cash flows from operating activities
Cash operating profit A 1231 706 836 440
Changes In working capital B (74 117) 257 308
Cash generated from operations 1 157 589 1193 748
Tax paid Cc {153 280) {213 907)
Cash generated from operating activities 1004 309 979 841
Cash used In Investing activities (580 978) (615 982)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment D {453 931) (653 444)
Costs incurred on intangibles {2 049) (4 141)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2031 317
Finance income 28279 41286
Equity instruments acquired (155 306)
Cash flows to financing activities (441 738) (596 871)
Dividends paid to the company's shareholders E {164 958)| (591 387)
Dividends pald to non-controlling sharehoiders (1 320) {2 970)
Proceeds from shares lssued 3649
Finance expense on borrowings (5 858) {5 163)
Treasury shares acqulred In terms of the Forfeltable share plan (23 678)
Lease payments - principal element (177 966)
Finance cast paid on lease contracts (67 961)
Net Inflow of cash and cash equivalents (18 403) (232 012)
Effects of exchange rate changes 9 657 (1 680}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5§54 874 788 566
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 20 546 128 554 874
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS =
for the v=ar ended 30 Sent=mber 2020

2020 2019
. RO0G R'000
A. Cash operating profit
Profit before Interest and tax 838112 882 279
Adjustments for:
Depreclation and amortisation 403 465 178 230
Scrapping of property, plant and equipment 2811 8 364
(ProfitVloss on dispoaal of property, plant and equipment (7 (74)
Change in provision for employee benefit obligations {7 078) (120 942)
Fair value adjustments (8597) {417)
Cash operating profit 1231 708 936 440
B. Changes In working capltal
Dacrease/(Increase) in Inventorias (184 718) 146 428
Decrease/{incraase) In biologlcal assets (93 866) 8 654
Decrease/{increasae) in trade and other recelvables 54 489 47 980
Increase in trade and other payables 149 978 54 048
Tetal change In working capltal (74 117) 257 308
C. Tax paid
Balance at baginning of year (6 055) {10177}
Normal tax provigion (123 970) (207 671)
Translation differences 132 138
Provision against recoverabllity of tax recelvable balance of a foreign subsidlary 1050 (2 252)
Net baiance at end of year (24 437) G 055
Total tax pakd {153 280) (213 907)
D. Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment to Improve and/or expand operations (584 544) (265 331)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment to maintaln operations {103 863) {162 871)
Total purchases (688 407) {428 002)
(Increase)ydecrease in advance capltal expenditure payments 233 319 {226 608}
Increase/(decrease) In outstanding capital expandiiure payments 1167 166
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (453 931) {653 444)
E. Dividends paid
Balance at beginning of year (2 765) (2 388)
Per statement of changes in equity {165 042) {6591 756)
Balance at end of year 2838 2755

Total dividends pald {164 958) (591 397)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ’
for the \x:ar ended 30 Saplosnber 2020

. Sagment information

Astral Is an integrated pouliry producer whose process starts with broller genetics In its breeding operationa through the sading of day-old chicks and hatching eggs,
broller production and the processing of brollers through four abattoirs, and ends with the marketing, sefing and distribution of pouliry products, Alongside the entire
process, fead |a produced In nine fead miBs of which about 80% ia for own Intemnal requirements, with the balance sold o external commerclel farmers. Two of the
fead mills and three poultry breeding and hatchery operations are situated In African countries outside South Africa. Operating ssgmants are raported in a manner
conaistent with the Internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive Officer who is responelble for allocating resources and assessing parformance of the oparating
segments. The activities have been divided Into three operating segments, Poultry, Feed, and Other Africa. The business activities are grouped in these segments
based on the nature of their business and In the casa of Other Africa, the gecgraphical area In which they conduct their business activities. Traneactions betwesn
raportable segments are conducted on similar tarms es other external transactions of this nature. All revenue batween segmants are at market related pricas.

Revenue par ssgmant
Revenue In reapect of all three segments comprisas of tha following:
- The sales of product net of valus-added tax {where applcable), normal discounts, rebetes and retuma.
- Revenue s recognised at the point In time when control has passed to the customer. This le when dallvery of the product le made to the customers, or when
customers collact the product from one of the group's locations.
= Payment tarma for non-cash sales are generally 30 deys from date of statement.
= A raceivable is recognisad In respect of non-cash sales In the Balance Shaet as an unconditional right o recalve payment exlst.

Poultry: External revenusa comprises the sale of pouliry related products for human consumption as well as day-old brollars,
hatching egge and day-old parent stock.
The customer profite for poultry products Is mainly wholesale and retall outiete, which Includes the major national food retailars In South Africa
Sales of day-oid brollers, hatching aggs and day-oid parent etock are mainly to extamal poultry producers.
Inter-segment revenue conalsts of poultry by-products sold 1o the Fead segment as a source of protein for feed.
Fead: BExternal revenue comprises the sale of a wide range of speclallsed feed products for commerclally farmed animal spacies.
The customer prefile for feed products are malnly extemnal poultry producers and commaerclal farmere farming with other anfmel species.
Inter-segment sales consist of feed to the Poultry segment
Other Africa: Revenus comprisas the sale of animal fead and day-oki brollars to extarnal customers.
External Inter-

customer sagment Total segrment
Revenue Revenue Revenus

RO R'000 R'0N0
201e
Poultry 10 868 577 178 558 10877 135
e
- Day-oid brollers, hatching eggs and day-old parents 841 580
Feed 2307 263 4 266 485 8673738
Other Africa 478 645 479 845
o [_aa
= Day-old brollers, and hatching eggs 160 836

15465475 4445 043 T7 630 518
2020
Poultry 11 168 108 175123 R TS 1]
Deyed et e
= Day-oid broflers, hatching eggs and day-old parents “ )
Feed - Fead products 2 453 753 4525 GRS 69T 422
Other Africa 482 420 482 420
Do i
= Day=old brollers, and hatching sggs 184 199

TIRAT AT e TERE0TS

2020 2019

Tha group revenus is denominated In the following currencles:
Revenue denominated In S8outh Africa Rand

T i3EEtOaT 13006830

Revenus denominated In foreign functional currencies _“_4!2 420 470 845
Revenus from the top five customsrs are all from the Pouliry sagment.
Customer 1 J 485 320 3798 863
Customer 2 2927809 1368 785
Customer 3 508 363 580 821
Customer 4 492 156 530 966
Cusiomer 5 482 144 520 208
Revenue from customer 1 and 2 Individusily exceeds 10% of totel revenue.
Operating profit psr ssgmant
Contribution to the group profit is as follows:
Poultry 295016 370 677
Feed 508 091 480 483
Other Africa 35008 21819
Profit bafors Intarest and tax 838 112 Be22me
Finance Income 2in 41 288
Finance axpanse [ B4 647) 10 914)
Profit before tax 81 Badd 812851
Tax expanse A 610) { 285 118)
Proftt for the vear i
2020 2019 2020 2019
R'DO0 R'000 R000 R'000
Proparty, plant and sguipment
Dapreciation, amortisation and Impalrment and Inianglbles Right of use assets
Poultry 162 582 148 223 67 811
Feed 22701 2 143018
Other Africa 508 5288
Corporata 243 08 2 089
150 47 T/en  eame
Capital expanditure Pro) and eguipment ht of use asgots
Foultry 667 206 372081 165 M2
Fesd 17 422 56617
Other Africa 57172 3as
Comorate 12 84 =l
=0 T8 $TT
Other | rais receivanies
Poultry 35 337
Feed M 201179 211 438 224 107
Qther Africa 19788 23 788

47 157 £2 850
setiey 51 0658

11




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the vear ended 30 September 2020

Page 26

. Expenses by nature

2019

Cost of raw material

Inventory written down and losses

Fair value adjustment to biclogical assets
Lease costs

Amortisation of Intanglbles

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Raepslrs and maintenance

Water

Energy

Information technology related costs
Advertising, marketing, promotional relaled costs
Transport and distribution costs

Employes benefit expense (note 3)

Directors’ remuneration (note 32)

Auditors' remuneration and related expenses
Other

2020

Cost of raw matarial

Inventory written down and losses

Falr value adjustment to blological assesis
Leass costs

Amorilsation of Intanglblas

Depraciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation Right of use assats

Repalrs and maintenance

Water

Energy

Information technology related cosis
Advertising, marketing, promotional related coste
Transport and distribution costs

Employas benefit expense {note 3)

Direciors' remuneration {note 32)

Audttors’ remuneration and related expenses
Other

. Employee benefit axpenae
Cost of employment of parmanent employess
Performance incentives
Long-term retention banafits
Termination banefits
Post-employment benefits

Cost of contracted labour
Number of empioyess at 30 September:

- Permanent employees
- Contracted Iabour

Administrative Diatribution Marketing
Costofsales  expanses costs expenditure Total
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
7191 184 7191184
17 767 17 767
3108 3108
765 162 10178 219679 1032 306 948
6092 8082
180 498 8648 2886 100 170 138
458 561 10 640 6 648 130 475 879
117 004 88 78 117 168
804 437 4 567 8068 2811 619873
47 83 202 18 16 63 283
128 616 128 815
27 481 440 864 468 345
1 350 305 337 408 50 826 48 817 1705 857
62 006 62 005
7681 7 681
850 914 214 797 96 087 20519 1182 207
10 866 468 723290 833 734 201 848 12 6156 340
7 670 218 7670 218
37304 a7 384
{ 5300) { s390)
48 441 5482 1 662 1322 66 90T
5 586 5 586
176 232 7 2 601 60 184 961
40 774 8196 163 848 MzHe
457 Ob1 131242 12312 24 483 £29
118428 137 51 118 628
88t 380 4 327 T 842 225 630 600
14 85 034 19 24 65 oM
161 60t 161 801
32 482 682 474 714 058
1435 860 341 591 70 663 57 428 1 005 442
66 257 b6 257
705 7 661
624 778 182 084 93 204 13 324 923 445
11 321 550 706 825 1034 573 236 234 13 2908 982
220 2018
R'000 R000
1 532 960 1 3680 621
66 501 77 3652
35901 44 185
4793 2 476
8132 _ 8434
1 640 317 1483077
256 08b 302 880
1 005 442 1786 557
8 852 9047
Ja04 2452
13 266 11489




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the yusr ended 30 Seplember 2020

2020 2019
R000 RO00
Other incoms
Scrap sold 266 1008
Amounts written off recovenad 1497 883
Storage fae Incomes 4308 4344
Insurance recoveries relatad to costs incurred 30138 3804
Rental racaived 2383 4953
Rabates received 38
402 18126
Other (losses)/gains
Forelgn exchange (losses)/galns on financlal instruments and monetary ltems {3 8s8) 1161
Profiti{lcss) on sale of property, plant and equipment 7 T4
Assets scrapped {2 811) {8 384)
Trade recalvables written off {17) {1 869)
Fair value adjustment to cutstanding racslvables - gain 1939
Falr value adjustment {o outstanding payables - gain 4077
@aRy (2082)
Finance Income and expense
Interest income
Bank balances 25780 a8 881
Other 2499 2305
P Eii] 41288
interest axpense
Bank borrowings 4539 4 368
interast accruad on Right of uge llabillties &7 oal
Interest accrued on provision for long outstanding liabilities 10712 5761
Other 1335 755
84 BAT 10914
Net finance Income (56 208) 80 372
Tax expense
Current tax 123 214 208 378
Deferred tex 89 493 53 960
707 280 338
Current tax - prior year 315 47
Deferred tax - prior year (2 853) 3486
Withholding tax 441 8§78
220 610 265 116
The tax on the group's profit bafore tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic tax
rate of South Africa:
Profit before tax 781 844 912 8561
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 28% (2019: 28%) 218916 256 542
Effact of different tax rates in other countiries (818) {1 368)
Training aliowances receivad (3 381) {1512)
Non-trading related expsnses 1886 1983
Legal expensas 421 992
Donations and soclal Investmenta not tax deductible 531 465
Ceats incurred by forsign subsidiaries not tax deductible 1441 1523
Other expenses not deductible for tax purposes 140 943
Temporary differences on which no deferred tax |s recognised 93 141
Adjustments to prior year's normal tax provision 315 417
Ad|ustments to prior year's tax base used for calculating deferred tax (2 853) 3485
Withholding tax pald 441 876
Tax lossea not utllisediutilisad) to reduce current and/or deferred tex 449 1819
Finance charges not tax deductible 1038
Tax charge per incoms stafement 220 610 265 116

Further information about deferred tax |s presentad In nots 23.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
for the vear ended 30 Sepiember 2020

2020 2019

R00 R000
Earnings per shars
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company used for calculating eamings per share and diluted eamings per share 556 287 643 653

cents cants
Basic earnings per ordinary share 1435 1669
Diluted samings per share 1432 1858

Noofshars _ Noof sharee

Woelghted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year for caiculating eamings per share 38 768 135 38 806 070
Adjustments for forfeltable shares 78 §23 10 848
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for calculating diluted eaminge per share T iR Po6ois
Basic eamings per share

Basle aamings per share |& calculated by dividing the profit attibutable to squity holders of the company by the welghted average number of ordinary shares during the year,
reduced by ordinary shares purchased and heid as treasury shares.

Dlluted sarmings per share
Diluted samings per share for tha current year is basaed on the number of shares, currently held as treasury shares, which will per the forfeliabls share incantive scheme,
either vests dapending on the meeting of certain parformance criteria, or will be sold back Into the market in the event the performance conditions have not besn met.

Dlluted earnings per share for the prior year has been calculated by adjusting the welghted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assuma conversion of all
diiutive potential ordinary shares from the exarcise of share options. The number of shares that could have been lssued at fair value (determined as the aversgs annual
market share price of the company's shanas) to equal the monstary valua of the subseription rights attached to the outstanding share options, are calculated. A higher number
of shares that would havs been Issuad in the evant the share options were axarcized, versus the number of sharas that could have been |ssued at fair value, have a dilutive
effect on the eamings per shara. No adjustment le made where the Issue of share options have no diiutive effect on the number of shares In ssue.

Gross Net
RO00 RO00
Headline eamings
2019
Net profit attributable to sharsholders 6843 6853
Adjusted for:
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment [ 74) { 38)
Loss on assets scrapped 8 384 6023
Headline eamings 649 638
2020
Net profit attributable to shareholders 888 287
AdJustad for:
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment ("N &
Loes on asssis scrapped 2819 2015
Headline eamninge m_ﬁ,
2020 201
cents centy
Headline sarnings per share (cents)
Headline eamings per share (cants) 1441 1674
Diluted headline aamings per share {cents) 1438 1674
R'o00 R'000
Dividends
The following dividends (net of freasury shares) were declared In respect of the current yaar's proiits:
Interim dividend - nil (2019: 475 cents per share} 184 337
Final dividend {Dividend no 38) - declared on 11 November 2020
775 cants per share {2019: 425 cants per share) 300 861 166 043
Total dividends declared in respect of the year ended 30 September 2020 - 775 cents per share { 2018: 800 cents per share) 300 967 349 360

The current year financlal statements do not include the final dividend declarad In respect of the financial year anded 30 Saptember 2020.
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11. Property, plant and equipment

2019

Net book amount at 1 October 2018
Changes for the year:
Reclasslfications

Exchange translation changes
Addltions - Expanslon/improvement
Addltions - Replacement

Disposais

Asssis scrapped

Dapreclation racognigsed in the statement of comprehensive Income
Closing net book amount

Balance at 3¢ September 2016:
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Closing net book amount

2020

Net bock amount at 1 October 2019
Changes for the year:
Reclassifications

Exchange translation changes
Additions - Expansion/improvement
Additions - Replacement

Disposals

Asssls scrapped

Depreciation recognised In the statement of comprehengive Income
Closing net book amount

Balance at 30 September 2020:
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Cloaing net book amount

Land and Plant, and
bulldings oegquipment Vehicles Total
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
913 626 1258313 40 266 2212 205
7 { 763) 8
881 362 172 1415
171 071 93 661 £599 265 331
43 433 114 850 4388 162 871
{81) (18) {123) ( 202)
{2 780) (5 578) (8) ( 8364)
(30 769) 1132 176) (7 194, (170 138)
1098 158 1328 857 38108 2 452 918

1568 147 2 558 330 144958 | 4272441
472 989 1229 684 106 850 1809 523
38108 | 2462 818

1096 158 1328 652 39108| 2462918
(132) { 338) 470

(8 114) {6 483) { 402) {14 890)

69 400 512 070 3074 584 544

12433 67 282 24 148 103 263

{1418) { 483) i1911)

{315) {2 A83) (43) {2 841)

30 083} (146 561) (7 417) {184 081)
1138 447 1750 751 67 445 | 2 946 643
1636 203 3 071378 165294 |[ 4074963
490848) (1320827) (107 849)|| (192832
“""{ﬂiﬂiﬂ 1750 151 57445 | 2946643

Detalls of the Individual properties are on record, which are open for inspection by members or I_helr nominees at the registered office of the company.

VSt Ination
- Bulidings,
deployment of simllar asssts In the group.

Certain assets at a Zamblan subsidlary stand as security for bank facllities - refer note 29.5.

* [ RN I 1 ih AIETR] B 1l
plant and equipment are of a specialised nature and the expected useful lives at initial recognition are basad on past experience of

- Subsequent to the nitial determination of useful lives, the remalning useful life Is aseessed annually, taking into account the physical condition of the
aasst item and how long It can still be operational without Incurring excessive repairs and maintenance costs. When the cost of repairs and
maintenance reaches such a level where It is not feaslble to continue to use a particular plant item, it Is replaced. Continucus technology changes
could also have a bearing an the aconomic Iife of existing assats. The Impact of lowsr operating costs of uging the latest technology In processes
thereby warmanting Investment in such assets could make the use of exlsting assats uneconomical and have an Impact on their useful economic lives.
Due to the above varlable fectors, predictions of future replacement dates are based on subjective aasessments, and remalning life expectancles are

therefore subject to variabllity.

- Depreciation on speclalised bulldings, plant and equipment Is calculated on the basla that they will have no residual value when they reach the end

of their estimated aconomical livas.

- Dapreciation on vshicles Is calculated on the basis that it will have residual valuss of batwesn 10% and 20% of the original cost when they reach the

end of their estimated economic lives.

- Depreclation on asssts Is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of each asset to Ite estimated residual value over its
estimated useful life. The estimatad life of assets per asset catagory falls within the following ranges:

Buildings

Plant and equipment - pouliry
Plant and equipment - feed
Vehicles

Intangible assete - software

12. Intangibie asssts
Software
Opening net book amount
Changes for the year:
Exchange translation changes
Capltallsation of costs Incurred
Disposals
Amortisation - Included in administrative expanses
Closing net book amount
Cost
Agcumulated amortisation
Closing net book amount

13. Capltal commitments
Capital expenditure approved not contracted for

50 years

8 — 25 years
5 — 50 years
5-10 years
5 - 15 years

Capltal expenditure contracted but not recognised In the financial statements
Cost on intangibles contracted but not recognisad in the financlal siataments
The capltal commitments will be financed from a combination of operating cash flows, surplus cash and borrowings when
required. No abnormally high dabt lavels are forassen resulting from future capital axpenditure.

2020 2019
R'D00 R'000
50 163 61150
{112) 16
2 049 4141
{113) {4)
___{ns8 6 092
1 59 1
48 201 o6 702
{42 B70) (37 609
55 429 5'91%"'3
170 157 191 153
127 682 342 648
80 2 906
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14. Leases
Information regarding lease contracts In the group Is provided below.
The nature of lease contracts In the group are In respect of leases of office space, movable plant items In the procassing plants, gensral office
equipment, farm vehicles and vehicles for cutbound transport of finished goode to customers.
Lease contracts verles from contracts for Individual tems to contracts where & number of ltems are leased per contract, as the case Is In
raapect of certaln vahicles.
Qualifying laases are recognised as right-of -uee asseta with comasponding lease liabllites.
Take-on values of the right-of-use assets and leasa llabilities have basn basad on future lsass payments, discounted at the pravalling
Incremental borrowing rate to present values. The Incremental borrowing ratas used are based on the cost of borrowing from third party
financlers.
Future Index or rate ralated Increases In variable leass payments are not iaken Into account in determining the carrying values untll they take
affect. When these adjustments take effect the leasea liabliity Is re-measured with a corrasponding adjustmant to the right-of-use assats.
In Instancas whera there Is a reasonable degres of certsinty that options 1o extend laase pariods will be exercisad, the extanded periods have
been used in calculating the present values of lsase payments.
The Impact of leases on the deferred tax provision, are separately calculated and provided for the of right-cf-use asssts and for the lease
liabliittes. Refer note 23 - Deferred tax.
Refer note 37 for the Impact of this change In accounting palicy en tha current year financlal reporting.
14.1 Right-of-Use assets
Plant, and
Bulldings squipment Vehicles Total
R000 R'000 R000 R'000
2020
Opening balance 1 October 2019 53091 3210 830293 £95 504
Changes for the year:
Additions 21008 134 307 185 312
Ra-measuraments _ " [ 82T7) {927)
Amortisation {8 £90) 14 324} 190 904 212 918
Closing net book amount 28407 15887 A7 760 | saroet
Balance at 30 September 2020: —=
Capitalised costa 53081
Accumulated amortisation ( 8830}
Closing net book amount A4 401

Thae taks-on valuas of the right-of use asssts were based on the preasnt valus of outstanding leass payments as at 1 October 2019.
The value of new right-cf-use assets added during the year, are the Inltlally measuremaent of the related lease ilabilty.
Right-of-use assets are amortised over the shorter of s usaful Iife or the leass term, Inciuding an axtanded term, where applicable.

2020 2010
F'000 R1000
142 Lease liabllities

Non-current 385 956

Currant 208 057

s /1 B—
Meturity profile of lease llabilities:

Capital payments next year 206 957

gnltal payments from the second up to the fifth vear 3:: 3;.:

pltal payments after five years
_ﬂ! 013

Total lease payments relating to caplalissd leases 245 927

Interest expense on lsase liabllity Included In finance cost 67 981

Laase payments are apportionad between a filnance cost componant, recognieed as a finance charge, and a
reduction of the outstanding principal emount of the lease liablies.

14.3 Other Ieases

Leass payments Iincluded In opsrating profit as lease axpanses !

= Lease payments relating to low value liems 8163

- Leasa payments raleting to short-term loases T 463

- Varlable lease payments not linkad to an index or rate and not recognisad In right-of-use assets £1 281

- Leasa paymants as per IAS 17 305 948
Future other lsase commitments: 10 617 715 683
Not later than one year : |
- Short term leases: property 4054

- Short term leases: plant and equipment 23

=Low value tems 3778

= Lease paymants as per IAS 17 204 298
Later than one year and not later than five ysara :

= Low valua ltems 2044

- Lease payments as per IAS 17 491 367
Later than five years

= Low velue items A8

- Lease payments aa per IAS 17 77387

Short term leasas are thosa with terms of not more than twelve manths.
Low value leasss are generally leases of offics equipmant and of personal IT equipment.

Lease payments In respect of short term leases and leases of low value ams are expensed In the income statement, as and when Incurred.
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18. Goodwill
Goodwill Is allooated to the group’s cash-gensrating units identified according to business segment. Goodwil le asseased for Impairment at
sach reporting date. The recoverable amount of the relevant cash generating units is determined based on value-in-use calculations. Theas
calculations uss cash flow projections as contained In the annuel budgat and busineas plan forecasts approved by the board of directors.

The diacount rates used to determine valuss of individual cash gensrating units sre basad on the weighted average cost of capital for these
businass units and Incorporate specific businesas risks refated to the industry ae well as the different gecgraphical and economical arsas In
which businezs activilies are conducted. The discount rate Is lower than the previcus year due to increased level of debt resulting from the

Inclusion of lease [iablilties as part of the debt funding of the businessas.

‘The cash flow projections have basn projected over five years. Abnormal trends In the forecests, givan the cyclical nature of the Industry In
which the businesses operate, for example the Impact of sbnormal weather paiterrs, are eliminated In the perpetulty calculations of future
cash flows.

Fead costs for brollers and the selling prices for poultry producis are regarded es the two most critical assumptions that Impact the
profitabilty of the relevant business unks. These two key assumptions are also exposed 1o the most volatiity compared to ofher
assumpliors used Inthe forecasts,

The perpetual growth rate |s based on the group’s assessment of the long tarm economic outiook and takes into account a view on market
conditions and the stratagic positioning of the business units within the markets In which they operate. The vaiuations, using a parpetulty
growth rate of 4,8% acoounts for the Impact of Inflation on future cash flow streams only, and does nct take Into account further expansion.
It ls siso expecied thet the businesses will malintain their respective market positioning and no reduction of volumes are assumed In the
calculation of the vakation of the business units.

Brofler feed conts

The major components of the broler feed ration ane the cost of matze and soya. The cost of these two Ingredients are Influsnced by a
number of factors ke weather patierns, the siza of annual national and Internations! crops, stock holdings and rate of consumption of these
commodities. Market forces Impact pricas of these commocdiies and essumptions for future prices take Into acoount most recent stock-to-
use ratios and prices of futures traded for thesa commodities In the open market. Specific adjustments are made for known abnormal
waather patierna such as droughts or above average rainfall pariods which could impact prices. The feed cost also Includes an allowance
for the impact of infiation on the production cost of broller feed.

Selling oricoa poultry products

Selling prices for poultry products are influenced by market forces which impact the supply and conaumption theraof. Assumptions for future
price levels take Into account the most recent market conditions adjusted for known price volatfity such as changes In regulations, periods
of over and short supply conditions, and forecasted tranda In consumer spanding. Long term pricing assumes normalised market conditions
and any prolongad paricd of over or under food [nflationary Increases In poultry products, are normaliasd In the long term outiock for sefling
prices.

Average
Forecast perpastulty
Discount period growth Goodwill
rates (yoars) rates R'000
M- ———— — —— - —
Poultry
GokiiFastive 13.1% 5 5.0% 406 020
Mountain Valey 13.1% 5 5.0% 16 500
National Chicks 13.1% 5 5.0% 3749
County Falr 13.1% 5 5.0% 2588
Food
Msadow - South Afrioan operadions 1.31% [ 5.0% 5648
Other Africa
Africa Feads Limited (Zambia) 17.0% [ 5.0% 2 580
a8 188
2020
Poultry
GoldiFestive 12.9% 5 458% 108
Mountaln Valley 12.9% 3 438% 15 699
National Chicks 12.9% ] 4.8% 3748
County Falr 129% 5 4.8% 2859
Feod
Meadow - South African operations 12.9% ] 4.8% 5648
Other Africa
Africa Feeds Limited (Zambia) 17,3% 5 10% 2 860
AR
The pre-tax discount rates are as follows:

GokiiFestive (16.7%), Mountain Valley { 15.9%), National Chioka({16.3%), County Fair{15.8%), Meadow{15.0%) and Africa Fesds Limited
(z-mhuxzo.).

2000 2019

Sonsitivity analysis R0 R'000

Changes In the economic and finencial environment, compatitor ectivity, regulstory authorlties’ decislons and

consumerg' bahaviour In response to the economic environment, may affect the assumptions used In the

calculation of the recoverable amounts.

The percanteges Indicated below ane regarded as reasorably possibls changes to the fong term

assumptions used for the more critical assumptions.

in the event that any one of the critical assumptions should change without compeneating chenges In tha

other assumptions, the Impact on the canrying value of goodwill coukl be s folows:

Potertial Impaiment  tha discount rates ere Increasad by 1% N { 686)

Potential mpakment if the net realisations of poultry products decrease by 1% Nit {18 889)

Potential mpairment If the net realsations of poultry products decrease by 3% 115 %88} {15 639)

Pobential impaiment If the net realisalions of poultry products decrease by 5% (15 598) {15 B89)

Potential impairment If the broler feed price increased by 1% NiE { 484)

Potential mpaiment If the broller feed price inoreased by 3% {1932) {15 Ba8)

Potential mpairment If the broler feed price increased by 5% {16 899) (18 509)
2020 2019
R'¢0D R'000

168. Financlial assets at fair value through othar comprehensive Income

Listed shares In Quantum Foods Holdings Lid

Tha shares are not held for trading as It is regarded as an sirategic investment.

An Imevocable slection has bean mads to recognise changes In the fal value of the shares In this

catmgory.

At cost - 10 550 855 ghares 156 308

Fair value adjuatment ﬁgl'ml

Far vake S e
Tha camying value of the investmaent ks based on the share prica on 30 September as |isted on the Johannesburg 1ok Exchange (JSE),
and it falla In level  of the falr value messurement hisrarchy.
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Blologlcal Azzets Egg Broilar Braading
stock shock stock Total
R'000 RO00 RO00 R000
2018 _ _
Fair velue at 1 October 2018 91 400 307 914 386314
Amortised cost st 1 October 2018 31147 371 147
Increase dua to establishment costs 818785 5261 188 606 833 6 473 806
Decrease due to harvastisales (818 702 (5255 423) {112 848)| (5987671)
Decreass dus to amortisation (406 020) ( 406 020)
Falr value adjustment {10 i1.358) [ 15481
Closing balance fily 202 i FRFA] 60 105 TEG 121
Balance at 30 Seplember 2018
Al fakr value 88 203 302323 300 616
At amortised cost 368 108 368 105
2020
Fair value at 1 October 2019 86293 302323 380 816
Amoriised cost at 1 October 2019 3088 108 380 105
Increase due to eatablishment costs 670 580 5 544 308 Bas 401 6 HBb 349
Dacresse dua to harvestsalea {642 41n) (6 b41018) (100 064)| (8 283 405)
Decrease dus to amortisation (613 918) ([ 613118)
Fair value adjustment 1812 1 980 3 792
Clesing balance | A58  diiarh Akl 997 | B51 958
Balance &t 30 September 2020:
At fair value 110 260 311875 429 926
At amortised cost 421 327 421 327

The cuantity of egg, broller and bresding stock Is based on the number of eggs and bind placemaiits &t the Deginning of each producion cycle adueted for
mertakiies.

Eag stock

The carrying value of ang stock Is based on falr vakus, and falls In level 3 of the fair valus measurement hierarchy.

Cosia Incurred related to the production of apga are capitalised during thelr growing cycle. A fair value adjusiment le applied to the cumulstive capitaised cost
thereaf.

The falr value adjustment of sggs Is determined as the price difference between the aum tetal of the capitalised cost at point of sale and the price at which the
halching eggs am sold in the exiemal market.

Brolier stock

The camying valus of broller stock is basad on falr value and falls in lavel 3 of the falr value messuremsnt hisrarchy.

Costs incurred related to the production of broller stock are caplialsed during lts growing oycle. A fair value adjustment is appliad to the cumulative capitalised
cost thereof.

The fair value adjustment for [ive brolier birds Is basad on the ratio at which the cumulated costs per kilogram of ive broflars at point of harvest differs with the
baught-in price per Ive kiiogram paid for broller birds dellverad by outside contract growers for processing through the abatioirs. This adjustment ratio ls applied
to the sum of costs of the total broller stock holding.

Blologlcal assets Include assets held at contract growars, as the Group retains ownership of thesa essets.

Breader stock

The carrying vaiue of breader stock Is besed on amortised cost.

The cost of breeding stock Includes the cost of the day-old chick, feeding and other related cosis, which are capitallesd during its rearing cycle of approximataly
22 weeks. The caphalised costs ara then amoriised during s productive (laying) cycle of approximately 40 weaks, to a cull valus at the end of its productive life
cycia. Thera is no markat for breedsr birds, except for when sold as a day-old chick, and when sokd et Its cull vaiue at the end of its productive cycle. in the
abseance of any fair value Indicators for mature breeder birds, the camying value of the breading stock, ae calcuisted on the besls of amortisad costs, ls regarded
84 an accurste Indicator of the feir valus thereof In the Integrated poultry producing procees.

203 2018
ke R'000
Inventories
Fosd rew materials 265 235 258 764
Feed finished goods 189 43 424
Poultry products 364 083 285 144
Consumabia stores 182 184 133 708
T T oai0s
The cost of inveniories and value of biological assets recognised as an expense In profit and loas amounts to R 7 670 milion
{2019: R 7 191 millon)
Certaln inventories at the Zambilan subsidiaries serve as security for bank faciiities - refer note 29.5.
Trade and other recelvables
Financial Instruments
Trade recelvables 1126 168 1152883
Provision for Ioss allowance/doubtiul debts _433) { 622)
Trade recelvables - net 1125734 1152 381
Other ecelvables 235716 38870
Receivable In reapect of Investmant sold 12218 18 000
Non financlal Instrumants
Prepaymants 13 566 17 845
Advance capiisl expenditure payments 22672 255 891
VAT recoverable 19819 30 509
Other recelvables T 518 753
—1HE0e7 1812 6
The falr values of trade and cther recelvables approximate thelr carrylng value.
The canryling emounts of the group's trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currancies:
8A Rand 1 208 568 1489 485
Zambilan Kwacha 4529 19737
Mozambican Maticals 3178
1218 7 1512 308

gomn;ﬂm recelvables at a Zamblan subakilary serve a3 security for bank facliities - refer note 28,5,

ategories

Trada recelvables are categorised according to the different businesa segments as the profiles of trade recaivables differ between the operating segmants, and
credit riska within thess categories are therefore reviewed separstely.

- Trade recsivables from the Pouliry sagment conslst mainfy of retall and wholesale cusiomers with the balence consiating of poultry farmars.

= Tracie racelvablea in the Feed segment consist mainly of famrming cuatomers with limited exposure to retall customaens.

= Trada racelvables in the Other Africa ssgment consist of both farmers and retall customers.

Paultry 894 812 D04 460
Famning 13 467 23 168
Retall and wholesale 881 303

Feed it1868 224720
Farmming 182 243 187 476
retptand whclosse

Othar Africa 9 788 23 788
Faming 18488 22 361
R vt ki 3o

1 1162
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2020 2019
R'000 R'000
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and In hand 573 581 598
Cash and cash equivalents Include the following for purposes of the cash fiow statement:
Cash at bank and In hand 573581 598 980
Bank overdrafts {nole 27) i% %} (44 115}
Cash and cash equivailents per the statement of cash flow 12 554 874
Share capital
Authorised share capltal
75 000 000 ordinary shares of 1 cent each
(2019: 75 000 000 ordinary shares of 1 cent each) 750 750
Ilssued share capital
42 922 235 ordinary shares of 1 cent each A0 429
(2019: 42 922 235 ordinary shares of 1 cent each)
Share premium 89 571 89 671
Total issued share capital and premium 206 400 90 400
All lssued shares are fully pald.
Number of shares effectively In Issue No of shares  No of shares
lesued shares 42 235 42 8§22 235

Troasury shares held by subsidlary and by pariicipants in the forfeltable share schame. g 4 203 077) s 4 088 §77)

Unissued share capital
The number of shares avallable to be utilised for purposes of the share option scheme:

No of sheres No of shares

Number of share options available at beginning of vear 4 292 A00 4 255 800
Number of share options exercised 34 850
Number of share options forfelted 1650
Number of shares under the control of directors for the purpoee of tha share option scheme at the end of the
yaar 4292 400 4 292 400
Other reserves
Non- Currency Currency
Share based distributable transiation gainsi{losses)  Total other
payment reserve loegal reserve reserve loans ressrves
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

2019 _____
Balance at 1 October 2018 782 (34 533) (7 700) { 41451)
Currency loss on Investment |oans to forelgn subsidlaries ( 414) ( 414}
Currency tranelation differences arising in year 1292 1262
Balance at 30 September 2019 782 (33241} 18114 { 40 573|
2020
Balance at 1 October 2019 782 (33 241) (8114) { 40573)
Provision for equity seitiad payment costs 3525 3525
Currency loss on Investment Ioans fo foreign subsidiarles { 2718) ( 2718)
Cumency tranelation differences arising in year 19 B30 {19 B30)
Balance at 30 September 2019 53 u‘ﬁi ;ﬂl #i) { 50 596}
The non-distributable logal reserve relates to a forelgn statutory requirer STEDy & ponmion o /BE O = ATy 18 legarded s non-

distributable,
‘The movement in the currency translation reserve relates to the fluctuations of the funclional currencies In which the Cther African subsidiaries conducts their
business activities, against the South African Rand.
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Defarred tax

Defarred tex Is calculated on all temporary differancas under the llabllity method, using a princlpal tex rade of 28% (2018: 28%)

Dafemred tax asssts and llabliites are offeat when there Is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assats against current tax llabilities and when defermed taxes
relate 1o the samae fiscal authority.

Dafarred tax llabliities

2020 2010
R'000 R'000
Movement on the deferred tax liablity account is as follows:
At baginning of ysar 539 421 4382 823
Charge related to lterns In Other Comprahensive income 3421 {847}
Chargs to profit and loss 98 640 57 445
Originating and revarsal of temporary differences 9 AFI 63 560
Adjustment to amounts recognised In prior year {2 843) 3 485
At end of year 4390 482 539 421
Chargedi{reloase)
to other
Opaning Charge to comprehansive Closing
Analysis of deferred tax liabilities : balance profit and loss Income balance
R000 R'000 R'000 R'000
2018
Temporary differences giving rise to deferred 1ax liabllities
Accelerated tax aliowances on assats 487 283 30 770 498 053
Temporary diifference on livestock and farming consumables 189 638 {8 082) 181 544
Temporary diffsrances giving rise to defarred tax assets
Provislon for retirement benefit obligations {26 032) {737) (847) (27 818)
Provislon for long-tarm retention payments {36 811) {2 800) {38 701)
Provision for qutstanding leave pay (23 952) (19563) {26 905)
Rental equallsation reserve (1231) 806 { 335)
Provision for incentive bonuses (60 056) a7 958 {22 098)
Provislon for clalms and trade discounts (10 681) 2686 (7 885}
Proviglon for long sarvice awards {5 753) 2393 (3 380)
Other (10 680) (3 586) (14 288)
482 823 57 445 | 847) 530421
2020
Temporary differences glving rise to deferred tex liabllitles
Accelerated tax allowances on asaeis 498 053 60 188 566 241
Temporary difference on livestock and farming consumables 131 544 41 359 222 895
Leass liabllity 160 164 180 184
Tamporary differences giving rise 10 deferred tax assets
Right-of-use agsets (150 377) (450 377}
Provision for retirement benefit obligations (27 &18) { 859) 3421 {25 US4
Provision for long term retention payments (38 r01) 1386 {37 335)
Provision for qutstanding leave pay (2% 905} {4 472) {30377
Rantal equalisation reserve { 335) 335 =
Provision for Incantive bonuses (22 098) 4408 {17 &80)
Provision for claims and trade discounts {7 88%) {21 289) {29 188)
Provision for long service awards {3 360) 560 {2 800)
Tax loases utlized to reduce deferred tax liabllity {2 441} {2 447)
Other {14 266} | 204} (¥4 550}
538 421 96 640 34 438 482

A defemed tax liabillty of R 24 088 000 (2018: R18 885 000) has not been recognised In respect of withhokding tax in the event of all the reteined eamings of the foreign
subsidlaries ara distributed by future dividends daclarations.
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24, Employes banciif chiigations

Parformance
Post-employmant Long-term Incentives and
madical benefits retention long service Quistanding
{Note 25) benefits awards leave cbiigations Total
R000 R'000 R'000 R'000 RO00

2019
Balance et 1 October 2018 92971 138 440 226 487 a5 544 541 442
Paymenta against provigion ( 70919) { 210021) { 280 940)
Increasal{decrease) In provision 5867 T2 887 74 455 8 875 156 784
Balance st 30 Saptember 2019 06 828 138 218 .90 821 92 519 420 286
Non-current provision 91718 67 480 7 000 168 179
Currant provision _—— 6908 70 758 8381 519 254 107

08 628 138 218 80 921 92 519 42() 286
2020
Balance at 1 October 2016 98 £26 138218 [ F--3] 82 518 420 286
Payments against provision { 68 138) { 99 440) [ 157 578)
Increase/{decreass) In provision [ 8151) 84 260 70 608 15072 141779
Balance at 30 Septembar 2020 B 477 133340 734 108 401 404 487
Non-currant provision 83 24 52706 & [ 140 730
Current provision 7453 B0 634 47 179 108 491 283 757

iva 133_340 ﬂ_l_ﬁ S m a_1 _‘“'W

The amounts provided for payment in respact of long-term retention benefits b b

The long term mgmionbsnaﬂtnrabnadnnneriwlngmlnpoﬂblmnneeeondnhmuwam‘o-mvuﬂm peduﬂfmmﬂ'lodahofallonlhnofhbeneﬂt.
Allocations are made every year effective 1 October. The provision ia basad on an assessmant to the extant that performance targats will bs achleved. It is
estimated that not all parformance targets will be achieved

The decreese In the employae benefit obiigations Is meinly es result of a decrease In short tarm Incentives, following the lower profits for the yeer.
Post-employment medical benefits

The group provides post-retirement healthcars benefits to some of ita current and retired employses - refer to paragraph 18 of the accounting policles for maors

detell regarding the post-employment medical plan, Banefits pald and the movement in the provision are charged againet profits In the curent period. Re-
maasuremenis are charged to other comprehansiva Income.

] -
R0 R000

Present value of funded obligations per actuarial valuation at 30 Ssptember

Belanca at baginning of year gz o7
Current service cost 486
Intarast costa 8782
Re-measuremant 3028
Benefite payments {6 586)
Batanca at and of year 88 828
Amounta recognised In the profit and loss: 8215
Current sarvice costs | 460
Intarest cosls 8752
Amounts recognised In other comprehensive Income:
Re-measurement 3 025
Arfeing from changes In financial assumptions 2 000}
Arising from changes In demographic assumptions 4532
Miscelianecus 483
Estimated smploysr benefits payable during next 12 monthe T 453 6909
The liabliity racognisad in the financial statements was actuarially valued at 30 September 2020 (previcus valuation date:
30 September 2018). The llability was valued using the Projectad Unit Credit valuation method which |s the same method
usad In the prior year.
Disoount rate 11.64% 2.91%
Heslth care cost inflation :
In service members 8.37% 7.711%
Continuation members 8.31% 7.71%
Pra-ratirement morialily retes as per SA 85-80 (Light) ultimate table
Post-retirsmant mortalily rates as per PA (80) ultimats table rated down 2 years plus an Improvament of 0.75% per
annum from a basa year of 2008.
Sansltivity analysis Accrued llabllit % chan
Discount rate increases by 1% p.a. 02 247 A%
Discount rale reduces by 1% p.a. 97 948 %
Subeldy infiation Increasas by 1% p.s. 96 388 8%
Subsidy Inflation reduces by 1% p.a. 82 206 2%
Mortelity rate decreasas by 1 year 02 325 %
A deterministic model has besn used to calculate the projected cash flows and the comesponding aenaltivity nesutts. The
results ara point aatimations and a limitation of this model ls that a limited range of resuits |s avallable for the senaitivity
results,

Expearisnce
Tha presant valuss of the defined benefit obligation and the sxperisnce adjustment were as follows: R0O00 adjustment _
30 September 2020 B0 477 AL 7%
30 Saptember 2019 08 629 12.4%
30 September 2018 a2e71 +3.8%

30 Septamber 2017 23 +8.4%
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2070 2018
R'000 R'000
Trade and other payables
Financlal instruments
Tradae payablea 12739039 1133002
Outstanding payment In respect of capital expenditure incurred 3541 2784
Accruals and cther payabies 189 481 213253
Non financis! Instruments
VAT payabis 24 404 19 066
Provision for contribution to local government water supply Infre-structure repairs 10 000
Operating lease equallsation 1197
Other 54 449 41833
1 556 294 1411 135
Payment terms for trede payables are usually 30 days from date of statement.
The carrying amounta of the group's trade and cther payables are denominated In the folowing currencies:
8A Rand 1 526 647 1 450 376
Zamblan Kwacha 16018 19023
Mozamblcan Meticals £ 4113
US Daollar 11 041 11 068
1 558 294 1 484 580
Net borrowings/surplus cash
Current borrowings
Bank overdrafts 27 453 44 115
The carrying amounts of the group's borrowings are denominated in
the following currencles:
SA Rend 3917 0236
Zambian Kwache 18 638 34 879
2T 45 2116
Net debt/surplus cash reconcillation
Bank surplus funds 573 681 508 989
Bank overdrafts = {27 453) 144 115}
Cash and cash aquivilents per statement of cash fiows 546 128 554 874
Lease llabliies 572 01
Net (debt)/surplue funds 554 674
Cash and cash
Financing activitias Leasss esquivalents Tolal
R'000 R000 R'000
Balance at 30 Seplamber 2018 786 588 7688 568
Cash flows (232012) (232012)
Effect of exchange rate changes {1880 (1880
Bajance at 30 September 2019 554 874 564 874
Lease labllities take-on balance - change In accounting policy (585 594) (500 G94)
Cash flows 177 986 {18 403) 158 663
Effect of exchange rate changes 9 857 9057
Neow loasos {156 312) {188 312)
Re-measurements 927 227
Balanca at 30 September !E ﬂg 546 129 {25 885)
Financlal llabliities Total on Balance
Financial Instruments Amortised cost at amortised coste sheot
R'000 R'000 _R000
2019
Current recelvables
Trade recelvables 1207 240 1207 240
Cash and cash squivalonts
Cash and bank 598 9689 598 989
Current borrowinga
Bank cverdrafts 44 115 44116
Shareholdara for dividend 2785 2756
Current financial liabllitles
Trade payables 1133002 1133002
Accruals 216 037 216037
2020
Current recalvables
Trada recalvablas 1 167 535 1161 625
Cash and cash squivalents
Cash and bank 573 581 673 581
Current borrowings
Bank overdrefts 27 453 27 463
Sharsholders for dividend 280 283
Current financial liabilities
Trade payablas 12v3930 127363
Accruals 193 422 193 422

Trade recelvables represents the payment of principal amounts and Interest, are held for contractual cash fiows and ara therefor accounted at emortised costs.
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Financial Risk Management

The reaponaibility of the overal financial risk of the group vasis with the board of directors which has an ovarall responsibiity to ensure the group operates within

acceptable risk parametere.

In exercising this responsibllly, the board assesses amongst others, the eppropriate levels of capital investment on expansion projects, the quantum of dividend

payments, and stratagy on procurement of rew materiale ageinst the outiook of near and longer term tading condltione.

The board Is agslsted In this function by the Audi and Risk Management Commitise which also assessea the buainaas rsks, as identified by management from time to

time, and the appropriate compensating controls to manage and mitigats the impact of the riska.

The group le exposed fo the following major financial riske:

Credit risk

Cradit risk Is the risk that one parly to a financlel Instrument will cause a financlal lose to the other party by fallng to discharge an obligatian.
Trada racsivablas and depoalts with banks are subject io credit risk and are managed by the Group Credit Exscutive and Chief Financlal Officar.
Imde recolvables:

The group's main credit risk Is concentratad In the aggregate balance of trade receivablas.

Trade receivables are categorised acconding to the different busineas segments as the profils of customers differs betwean the operating segments.
The cradi risks of sach Individual customer within these categorias are raviewed annualy.

- Trade recalvables from the Pouliry segment consist mainly of retall and wholesala customars with the balance consisting of pouliry farmars.

- Trada recelvablea In the Feed segmant consist mainly of farming customers with limited exposure to retal cusiomars.

- Trade recelvables In the Qther Africa segment consiat of both farmers and retall customere.

The group assesses credit risk on inltation and continuously montors exposure.

Inltally: The granting of credit in relation to trade recalvables Is controlied by the epplication of a number of credit controliing procedures, namaly;
= Cradht risk Insurance cover.

- Customars’ credit dsks are individually sasessed and, wherp nacassary, additional sacurity ls requested from the customer.

- Credit limits are set for customers and control procedures are In piace o ensure adharsncs to thoss imits.

- Reguirement that customars should provide updated statements of assets and lablities.

= No credit terme o customers regarded as high risk as par the intamal credit ek assessmant.

- New credlt terms are approved and signed off by the Chief Exacutive Officer.

Subsequently: The subsaquent credit control procedures Include:

- Regular visits and communication with cusiomaers,

- Annual re-asseasmant of the cradit worthinees of customers,

- Immadiate follow-up on late peyments,

- Inthe eveni a customer is unable o pay, further trading with the customer ls suspanded.

- Changes to existing credit éarms are approved and aigned off by the Chief Exacutive Officer.

Exposure fo trade recelvables comprisa a large, widespread customer base within sach business ssgment/category end Is as follows at 30 Sngzn';bsr:

2018
R000 R0
Accounis receivable 1126108 1152983
Less: Loss allowance { 38) { 622)
Less: Provision for doubtful dabis [ 398]
Nat accounts recelvable 1125734
Other recelvables 357 54 879
1 161 525
The table balow sats out fully performing, pest due but not Impeirad as well as the impaired recelvables and the proviaion ageinat such
recaivables:
Fully parforming - due by up to 30 days 1123900 1139088
Qutstanding longer than 30 days .. 2%Me 12 885
Past due by 31 to 60 days az-rlm
Past due by more than 80 days | 135 5518
—_ 1126155 _ 1152983
Poultry Feed Other Africa Total
The receivablos outstanding longer than 30 days par category: R'00D R'000 R'000 R000
2018
Past dua by 31 10 60 daya 7206 52 220 T477
Paet due by more than 80 days 5 807 1 5518
12712 _& 220 12068
Past due by 31 to 60 days T 4 321
Past due by more than 80 days 1 268 ] 1858
o T8 800" —3176
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EE ]
i) RO00
Loss sliowance
The trade receivablea do not have a significant financing component and the simpiified approach have been applied to calculsted the loss
allowance based on Lifefime sxpected creci losses.
Aioss sllowance Is calculated by each Individual business ynit In the group, based on ita historical loas mperiance and ita parlicular customer
proftis which reprasents trade recelvables with shared characteristica and specific charactardatica which ars iflusnced by the geographicsl area
whera they oparate a3 well as the nature of thelr businseass,
Provigion for lossee againet apecific irade recelvables are made in the event clrcumstances indicate to a high probabiiity of non payment. A loss
aliowance ia than calcuiated on the balances of the trade recalvablas,
The following sxpected ioss rates rangss wars caiculaied bymmbuslnm units:
2020
Ageing profils of the relevant irade recelvables Current 30 days B0 tayn ¢
Value range of applicable trade receivable groupings - R '000 R36 411 R11 456 R 400
Expected credk loss rate range - % 0,05 0,18 nil
Loss allowance - R000 R17 R19 nll
2019
Ageing profils of tha relevant trade eceivables Current 30 days 80 cays +
Velus range of applicable trade recelvable groupings - R '000 R16 030 to R81 377 |R4 124 o R 9 444 R 878
Expacted credit (oss rate range - % Q06010 319t0 4 00 nil
Loss aliowanos - R'000 R48 R&673 nll
Blllnnodnnbeglnnrngnfhya. | B8 { 41860)
Nat movement for the yaar 190 3528
Relsase sa result of change In the calculation of the loss alowante 4150
Reversal of prior ysar losa allowance 22
Current year loss allowance { ¥) { 022)
Prowision against apecific trede receivables {
Balance at end of yeer { @ { @
Movement In the loss sllowsnoe have been included In the profit and loss a3 part of administrative expenses under Other expenses.
The Loss allowanca is categorived as follows:
Poultry Fesd Other Africa Total
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
ne
Farming 622 az2
Retal and whaolesale -
822 - [
2020
Farming 432 412
Retall and wholeeale
[+ 43z
The group holds the following sscurity over trade receivables in the form of bank gusraniess,
covering bonds over property and credit guarantss insurance covar:
Poultry Feed Other Africa Total
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
2019
Bank guarantees 2500 6 500
Noterlal bonds over maveable sssets 24 200 24 200
Covering bonds over propety 2000 2000
Credk Guerantes Insurance Cover 316 816 316 815
2020 360 516 2000 32515
Bank guarantees 7 800 1850 9180
Notarial bonds over movesbie ssssly 22 000 22000
Covering bords over property 2000 2000
Credit Guaraniee Insurance Cover 312 M3 312 343
"l T0% TH86 e des
The credit quailiy of the trade receivables can be lllugirated according to the different risk profiles:
Poultry Food Other Africe Total
R000 R000 R'000 R'000 R1000
Low risk 983 488 863 468 845 o0
General risk nrmr 1 an 1 TR mm 501 668
High risk 1208 508 5518
211 beb Tfﬁl_‘-i's 10‘5_1'1W

Trade racatvables are catencrised Into the following rsk profiles:
= Low riek; Natioral customaers with = fow riak profie
- General fialc All other customens not clasatfied as low or high riak

= High risk: Customers with salvency and liquidity concems, and sisting customers in amears as & resutt of financlal dificulties.
The largest single credit risk at 30 Seplember amounts fo R414 milllon {2018: R231 milllon) In the Pouliry ssgment which has a low credit risk profile.

Cash and cash saulvalents:
Dealings with counterparties ariaing from dervative Instrumente are imited to well-satablished financial institutions of high orecl stending.
Cesh at bank reprasent surpius funds on current bank and cvemight call accounts. Theae furds are heid by financlal Ingtitutions of good atanding with Standard & Poor’s ratings

for short tarm local cumenoy of B.
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20.2 Market righ = interest rate risk
Market risk la the riak that tha fair value or future cash flows of a finenclal instrument will fuctuate because of changes In market Interest rates.
Tha group's imerest rate risk is Imied to surplua funde on cash depoalts, loan labiities and funds bosrowed on bank ovardrafis.
Interest Is at variable rates which are Inked to money market related rates and the bank prime lending rates.
Interest rate ek ls managed by the Chief Flinanclal Officer considering the group's net borrowings anc aurplus funds, as well as considering forward levels of
Interest ratea from time to tme.
Baeed on the financial Instrumants as at 30 September 2020, the after tax effect of & 1% movemant in the Interest rates on the statement of comprehensive
Income would be R 3 832 000 (2019: R3 895 000).
The group's main Income and operating cash flows ans substantially Indepandent of changas In the market intarest ratas.
29.3 Murket risk - foreign exchange rate risk
Market risk i the riak that the fair valua or future cash flows of a financial Inatryment will fluciuate because of changes In forelgn exchange rates.
The group enters info tranaactions from time to tims In currencles which are different from the functional curmencias in which It conducts its business activities,
which result in exposure to forelgn exchange rate fuctuations.
Expoaure fo exchange rate fluctuations s managed by utiising forward exchenge contrects and cumency option coniracts In consultation with the Chief Financial
Officer when management regards it prudant. Forward exchanga contracts entared Into are relatad to specific statoment of financlal position lmms.
There are no open contracts at year-end.{2010: nil}
Tha folowing rand value tema reported in the financisl stetamants are exposed fo forsign axchange rate fluctuations at 30 September:

U8 Dollar
R'000
219
Financlal assets - cash and cesh equivelents 2087
Finanacial llabliiies - Trade and other payables 7 1680
2020
Financial assets - cash and cash equivalenis 1349
Financial Fablllles - Trade and other payables (8 755)
408
A 10% movement in the exchange rate againsi tha US Dollar, will resultin a R 481 000 after tex effect in mr‘ohu_g'lfuup {2019; R 365 000)
Thare were no opan foreign exchanges cantracts at 30 September 2020 (2010: nll)
20.4 Market risk = price risk

This Is the riak that the fak value or fulure cash flows of a financlal Instrument will fluctuete because of changes in market pricea (other than those arsing from
Intorast rate rsk or curmency rak), whether thoes changas are caused by factors specific to the Individual financlal Instrument or ks lesuer, or by factors affecting
al simllar financial nstruments tradad in the market.

Lommocity price riak

The pricas of commaodities used by the group fluctuate widely and In a competiiive market it ls not always possible to recover material commodity price Increasas
from broller customers. Thie impacte on tha group's profitablity. Commodity price fiuctuations are normally caused by factors such as supply conditions, weather,
aexchange rate fluctuetions and other economic conditiona which are outsida tha control of Astral

These risks are managed through an established procass whersby the various conditions which Influsnce commodity prices are monltored on & daily basis.
Deaclslona on the procurement of aw materlals as well as the utlisation of derivative instruments to hedge againat thess riaks are taken by exacutive
management within board approved mandatee. Detalled staternants of raw material contracts and hadging positions are prepared and submitted on a monthly
basis to the Chief Executive Officer.

Bouliry products price rigk,

Poulry producers have Imited influence over prices of brodler products in the retall market. Theaa pricas are highly sensiive to the supply and damand balance
for brofer products. Imbalancas in supply and demand are ¢caused by a combination of a number faciors; the uncontrolied Import and dumping of chicken
producte on to the South African market, preduction levels and aupply from lccal producers, and the financlal strangth of the focal conaumar are the more
Important factors.

The management of this rsk is done by the peuliry management team through appropriate production planning, cost control, Improvement In efficlencies and
reduction of costs through continuous upgrading of procesass, aquipment and faciBifas.

Invesiments
The vakie of tha Inferst In Quantum Faoda Hokding Lid s exposed o changes I the velue of e sheras which are lkted on the Jehannasburg Sicck Exchange.
In the event the valua of the shares changs with 1%, it will have a R1 210 000 impact on ather comprehensive incoma.

20.5 Liquidity risk

Liquidity rtak [s the risk that the group will ancountar difficully in meating obligetions assoclated with financtal labliitiea thet are settied by defivering cash or
another financlal asset. The group has bormowings and other financial llabiktes.

The group has good cash flow generation cepabiiities. During pariods of normalised profit marging, L.e. when thers are no prolonged adverse movements in the
cost of commodities and/or prices of pouliry products, surplus cash Js generated and accumulated In the business. During perfads of kewer profit margins, both
working capital raquirments as well 83 capital axpendiures on property, plant and aquipment, ars financed from cash generated from business activiiies and
avallable short tarm bank faciiites.

The following table compares the contractual cash flows of debt owed at 30 September 2020, with the carrying amount In the coneolidated balance shest, In
Rands. The contractual amounts reflect the differences from carrying amounts duse to the effects of discounting and premiums. Interest la astimated assuming
Interest rates applicable to variabla rate dabt, remain constant.

Within Batwean More than
1 year 1 and § years yaars Total
RY00 R'000 R'000 RO
218
Trade and other payables 1 340030 1 340 030
Shareholders for dividend 2755 2785
Bank overdraft 44118 44118
1 385 00 1 362 604
2020
Leases paymants 266 302 409 807 36 208 702 317
Trade and other payables 1 487 381 1487 381
Shareholders for dividend 2039 283
Bank ovardraft 27 453

27 463
1783008 400 607 LE] Z10010_
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The foliowing table sats out the contractual terme of the borrowinge and other financlal Fabiities:

PN TV
Ropayment date Interast Interest rate
Trade payables curmment na. n.a.
Accruals current na. n.a.
Bank overdrafts - ZAR denominatad current variable 7% (2019: 10%) none
Bank overdrafts - Kwacha denomineted curmant variable 16,5 - 18% Morigage bond over
(2019:16,5-16%)  Property and fioating
charge aver inventory
g irpdn rpaeesatiies §
Tha liqukiily risks ars managed by the Chief Financial Officer on & group lavel through a combination of the fallowing;
= monloring of irading atock levels,
= monitoring of outstanding trade recelvables,
= monitoring of dally bank balances,

= calculating an eight-waek rofling forecast of bank balances on a weakly baals,

= conducting long term cash fliow forecasts at regular Intervals, and

- the amangement of access to short and long tarm borrowing facliiies from financlal institutions.

- Financing of malor capital expenditure teme are done from & combingtion of borrowed funds as well as from surpius cash when accumulated over a

period of time.
The genaral borrowing faclites from the banks, together with cash generated from operating activities are utlised to finance tha normal on-going operating
requirements of the group, which Include working caplial requiramants, nonmal capital axpanditure and payment of dividends.
2020 2018

Bomrowing facliites 000 R000

The bormowing faciities, which are reviewad on an annual basls, are held at four different

banks and R517 000 000 Is iImmediately accassble, and may be drawn at any time. The

balanca of the facliies can be ufililsed on short notice, subject to a mview.

The group has the following general borrowing faclliias at fioating intareet rates:

- Denominatad In 8A Rand
Total faciities 1 099 000 1081 000
Unutilsed facities at year and 1 091 000 1081 000

- Danominated In Zambian Kwacha
Total fachities 25 448 36 488
Unutflised faclities at ysar and (4[] 1810

The facllijes at the Zamblan subsidiaries are covered by securities over essats with the following carrying

values:
Land and bulldings 1488 2085
Inventory 42 628 58 844
Trade dabtors 11 754 12168

20.8 Capltal risk
The group manages lts caplial in order not to have axposure o abnormal high dabt position and to provide adequate retum on capltal empicyed.
The board of directora mandatas the long tarm capiiai structure of the group with debt to aquity not to excood a tanget of 43%.
The group continuously monitors its net debt to equity ratio.
Rabt Incurred from time 1o time by the group consiate mainly of the folowing;
- bank ovardrafts
= long term loans for the financing of spaclfi: major expansion projects when required
Surplus cash siuations occur from time to time as result of cycicallty in profits.
Eaulty comprises all components of equity as disclosed In the statement of financlal position.
The group is in & net surplus cash position with the net surplus cash relative to equily es at 30 September as follows:

2020 2018

R00D R000
Cash and cash equivalents - refer nota 20 573 581 508 080
Total debt - refer note 27 {27 453) (44 115
Net surplus cash 546 128 B854 874

Total capital
Equlty 4122 320 3 7865 638
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8hare based payments
Forfeitable share plan

The forfeltable share plan which is equity settied, allows the aliocation of Astral Foods Ltd shares to participants In the scheme. The allocated
shares are subject to a three year vesting period during which the shares are disclosed as treasury shares.

The shares are registarad In the nama of the particlpants and they are entitied to recelve dividends on the shares. Dividende pald, and recelved
by the participants, are disclosed as cash settlad remuneration and Is expensad In the Incoma statement.

Detail of restricted shares acquired during the year are as follows:

The shares were acquired by Astral Operations Limited at a cost of R 23 674 000.
114 500 shares were acquired which were allocated 1o axecutive directors and prescribed officers. Refer to note 32 for detall.

The sarvice cost recognised In the Income statement by the group in the curment year In respect of the restricted shares granted, amountsto R 3
626 000 (2019: nli).

Related party transactions

Directors’ remuneration

Details of directors’ remuneration is given in note 32. Exacutlve direciors are eligible for an annual performance related bonus payment linked to
appropriate group targets. The structure and payment of bonuses are declded by the Human Resources, Remuneration and Nominations
Committes.

Detalls of participation in the forfeltable share plan are given note 32,

Key management

Employess fulfilling the role of key management are the executive directors and the prescribed officers as listed In note 32.

Principal subsidiary undertakings

Details of subsidiaries In the group are set out In notes 35 to the financlal statements.

Cross Guaranteos
A croes guarantes incorporating a pledge and cesslon of loan funds batwaen the bank and group companies has been given by Astral Foods
Limied, Astral Operatione Limited, Meadow Feeds Eastern Cape (Pty) Limited, and Meadow Feede Standerton (Pty) Limited In respect of
bormowing facfiltles.
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32. Directors and preacribed officers remuneration

Directors’ fes /basio  Travaifing allowanos Tedal Tolal
mlnry and other payments ~ Shori-lerm (noesntives  Long-term incentives i) 2019
R'00D RU00 R000 R'000 R'0pa R700
Non-sxscutive Directors® fess
For services as Directors {excluding VAT) 3T 37/ 3457
T Eloff 1038 1038
DJ Foushe 947 847 608
TM Shebangu 878 (/-] 848
8 Mayet 489 459 o7 (@
WF Potgieter a4 344 82 |@
T Maumela 208 218 6719
MT Lategan 184 |#
Exscutiva Directors’ remunaration
For managerial services A 88 6107 24 b1 2 Bos 58 548
CE Schutte 8308 F1] 2532 10 675 21430 23 6568
GD Amold aner 28 1083 4328 8 436 11364 |3
AB Crocker 3997 28 1083 4328 2436 10 288
DD Farraira 5 200 [ ] 1409 5630 | 12 248 1327
Total Directors” fess and remuneration 25203 86 6 107 24861 66 257 62 005
Prescribed offficers' remuneration
For manaperial services 10 232 138 2322 5819 18 609 16 745
E Potgleter 2641 48 &% 23 & GhE 6816
MJ Schmitz 3388 -} 4 3447 7 806 6803
@ Jordsan 2625 24 582 3 241 841 |@
L Marupen 826 28 19 1045
MA Eloff T84 ] re2 2722
M Snyman 1083 |#
Total directors and prescribed officars remuneration ELE S FLCL) R o8 L¥( '] T8 760
Prescribad officers of the group consist of the Company Secretary and empioyess who fulfil key roles In the management of the group.
{¥) Fea/salary pald to dats of resignation as director/prescribed officer
{@) Fea/salary pakd from date of appointment as director/prescribad offioer
(%) Includes & merkt sward for sucosssfully managing the rieks posed by the first bresk-out of bird fiu In the South Afrioan pouliry Indusiry
which Is & major risk to the industry.
Effective dates of allocation 1Ocimber 2017 | 1 October 2018 | 1 October 2019
Vesting dates of parformance conditions September 30 September 2021| 30 September 2022
Payment dates
Exooutive Directors :
CE Schutte 10675 7 167 irra2 27,882
GD Amold 4328 aoa 1807 8998 11224
AB Crocker 4328 3061 1807 8996 11224
DD Femelra 5830 3982 2000 11 702 14 783
Emblny | mo:nEon pmmrmmmblu mm .2';) achieved (24 861, 17 281) 5304 LI m} 85113
n Em) ol 24 881 {10 857 {1488 36 908 {43 013
Contingent llablity - Included in Contingencies (note 34) — . B o4 aiﬂ)‘ ‘-m'ﬁb E‘Tﬁl
Presoribed officers :
E Potgieter 2372 1685 885 4942 5095
MJ Schmiiz 3447 2437 1280 7164 742
G Jordaan 878 579 -
Expaoted payments on condition performance targets are achieved 5619 4122 S04 2686 15418
Liabiiity included In Employes benefRt chilgetions {note 24) 5818 12521 [ 8541 {6 104) (8 188)
Contingent llabilty - Included in Contingencles {note 34) B 1801 2180 am 5 &
Securitios issued
Shares In Astral Foods Lid were lssued i terms of the forfeltable share plan. The sharss ara restricted and vesting I after three years from
date of sfocation, subject to certaln performance condiions are met.
Date of akooation 1 February 2020
Vesting date of performance condiions 30 September 20221
Data for vasting s unrestricted shares 31 Jai 2023
Costs of shares Shnres sxpected
allocated Shares aliocated to vest
RO00 No of shares No of shares
Shares allocated
Executive directors
CE Schutte 11218 b4 242 36 342
GD Amold 2308 11 680 ™M
AB Crocier 21388 11 689 Ekia)
DD Ferreira 3120 15 10 110
T8 182 2620 eTod
Prescribed officars
MJ Schmiz 1810 8237 6189
E Polglater 1 6 387 4278
G Jordaan 1312 8 M7 4252
4542 21 671 TR
23872 T3 500 o N

Note: Allocations made on 1 October 2019 comslats of a combination of Long-term Incentives as well as securitias issuad.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - OTHER INFORMATION %
for the y=ar ended 30 September 2020

Note 1. - Long-term Incentives (LTI)
The exscutive directors and prescribed officers participate In both the Long-tarm Ratention Plan (LRP} which Is a deferred cash schemne, and In the Forfeltabls
Share Plan {FSP), In farms of which restricied shares are allocated to particlpants.
Detalls of the allocations made, are as follow:
- 1 October 2017 with vesting date 30 September 2020
All allocations are in terme of the LRP.
Performance conditions relate to above-threshold production performance (PEF) and headline saminge per share (HEPS) growth, measured cver the threa
year vesting perlod. Payment of 25% of the allocated amounts are not subject to performance condlitions.
The performance condltions in reapect of the HEPS growih was not met In full, and as result the allocated amounts have not vestad In full.
=1 October 2018 with vesting date 30 S8eptember 2021
All allocations are In terms of the LRP.,
Performanca conditions relata to above-threshold production performance {PEF}, headline eamings per share {(HEPS) growth and return on net assste
(RONA) which must be achleved aver the thres-year vesting pericd. Elation report for more detall on the acheme.
It Is expected that not all of the performance conditions will be achieved, and lower payments are forecasted.
= 1 October 2019 with vesting date 30 September 2022
Allocations are apportioned between the LRP and the FSP.
Parformance condltions for both schemes relates to above-threshold production performance (PEF), headline aamings per share (HEPS) growth and return on
net assets {(RONA) which must be achleved over the three-year vesting period. Elation report for more detail on the scheme.
it is expected that not all of the performance conditions will ba achleved, and both lower payments and vesting of lower number of shares, are forecasted.
Note 2. = Short-term Incentives {STl)
‘The Executive Directors and preseribed officers participate In an annual performance based bonus scheme.
The bonus s calculated basaed on a pro-rata shars of 20% of the sconomk: value added (EVA tm) during the past year. The net operating profil after tax
(NOPAT) must be In excess of a pradetsrmined threshold before bonuses wlll be pald. Refer to the remuneration report for more detall on the scheme.

. Directors’ sharsholding 2020 2019
No of shares  No of shares
Directly heid number of shares
Baneficial Intorests
Non-Executive Directors
T Eloff 1150
DJ Fouche 9511 5650
S Mayet 1000
WF Potglater 1 400
Executive Directors
CE Schutte 32 000 26 450
DD Ferrelra 158 000 158 000
AB Crocker 4907 3726
GD Amold B 000 3 000
74008 196820
Note: There |e no change In Directors sharehalding up to date of publication of financial stalements.
2020 2018
400 R000
. Gontingencles and commitments
Commitments
Raw material contracted amounts not recognised in the statement of financlal position 1129 870 1378 632
The group has contracted its raw material requirements from various suppliers In terms of future supply agresments.
Orders placad for capital squipment included under capltal commitments {note 14), payable In the following currencles;
Euro 48 248
British pound 4074
Contingencies
Long term retenticn Incentlves not recognised in the statement of financlal position. 1 936 76 220
The payment of the future contingency Is on condition of achieving performance targets.
Interest in subsidiary companies
Detalls of the principal subsldlary companies In the group are as follows:
Issued ordinary capits! Effective parcentage holding
2020 2018 220 2019
B0 R'000 b %
Unlisted Investments
Astral Operations Limited a 12 12 100 100
Natlonal Chicks Limited b 25720 23720 100 100
Meadow Feeds Eastarn Cape (Pty) Ltd c 100 100
Meadow Feede Standerton (Pty) Lid c 100 100
Africa Feeds Limited (Zambia) c 24 % 100 100
Maadow Mogambique Limitada * [ 4393 4393 80 80
Progressive Poultry Limited * d 10 10 100 100
Mozpintos Limitada * d 100 100 100 100
Natlonal Chicks Swazlland (Pty) Limlted # d 1 1 74 67
A Incorporated In Zambla. * Incorporated In Mozambique # Incorporated in Swazlland
Nature of buslness
a - Animal fead and pre-mix production, b - Investment holding d - Production and sale of day-old brollers and
broiler genstics and broiler breeding ¢ - Animal fesd preduction hatching eggs.

production, broiler oparations, production and

sale of day-old brollers and hatehing egge

and analytical services.

Events subsequent to balance sheet date

A final dividend of 776 cenis per share has been declared on 11 November 2020. The payment of the dividend will be on 21 January 2021.

No other events took place between ysar-snd and the date of Issue of these financial statements that would have a material efiect on the financial statements
as disclosad.
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. Change In accounting policies
The group adopted I[FRS 16 - Leases at the beginning of the 2020 financlal year:
The group followad the modifiad retroapective approach with the implementation of IFRS 16 on | Octobar 2018, without restating comparetives In the financial statements. Exdsting
coniracts were not re-assessed to determine whether thay are leasas in tarms of IFRS 16, and scamption was appliad o exiating lsase contracta with remaining terms less than
twelve months on Implementation dete,
In applying IFRS 186 for the firat time, the group has used tha following practical expadients parmitted by the standard:
- applying a single diacount rate to a porifolio of Isasss with reasonably similar characteristics
« relying on previcus assssaments on whather leases are onerous as an alternative to performing an Impairment raview ~ there wera no cnercus contracts as at 1 January 2019
» accounting for operafing leases with a remaining leasa term of legs than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 es shori-term leases
» axcluding Initial direct costs for the maasurement of the right-of-use asaet at tha date of Initial application, and
+ using hindsight In determining the lease term where the contract contalns options to extend or terminate the lease.
The group has also elected not io reassess whether a contract Is, or contains a lease at tha date of initiaf application. Inetead, for contracts antered into bafors the transition date the
group relied on [ta assassment mada applying IAS 17 and Interprelation 4 Datarmining whathar an Armangament containas a Lease.

The Impact on the financlal stataments for 2020 ls ae follows:

Recognition of additional amartisation charges on right-of-use asseis
De-recognition of laase paymarts &s oparating sxpanses In the operating profit
Net Increase In operating profit

Additional finance charges

Net dacreasa In profit bafore tax

Decreasa In tax ¢charge
Net decrease In eamings

Increase In Total assets at end of year
Increasa In Intarest bearing llabilities at end of year
Dacreass In defarred tax provision

Reconclilstion of lssse commiiments on 30 September 2016 with leass liabllitles on 1 October 2019
Total cutstanding lease commitmenis on 30 Sepiember 2019
Leas lsase commiiments In reapact of;

= Low value ltems
-~ ghort term leases

Lease commitments on 1 October 2010 disclosed as right-of-use assate
Diacounting of commitments at the incremental borrowing rate
Lease llabilities recogniaed on 1 Oclober 2018

Impact of COVID-18 and of economic lock down

ROMH
{ 212919)

— i

8 787

637 081
{ 572013)
6787
793 060
{ 3281}
{ 10 238
TiD b4
{ 183547)

Assessment Impact
Revenue The group, balng both a food and an animal feed producar, was classified as providing Limited
assantial gocds during the Covid 19 lockdown period, and business activities continued openl ocono! I I
uninterrupted. Sales to the Quick Service Restaurants{"QSR") was negatively impacted ke wb:.q:& of rg:,:::l;r; m.m_u e
as reault of their forced closs down during ihe Initial stages of the lockdown period. The
producte narmally sold to the QSR outiets ware proceasad Into IQF products, which wena
sold via the normal wholesale and retall channels. Pricing of products wers howewver
advergely Impacted resuiting from surplus stock In the IQF market - refer to tha Inventory
=== = Impoct balow. .
len.mml:l . d:f:ut mc:;whlahs stom ‘::du ith m I?I;-‘?I:im t'li:llml:'nem tlI:”I:o Payme soma custom
own customer base, with any ng adju n
¢ credk lossss) aoocunt where nacassary. The Impact of the lockdown on customers has besn, and are | o, .::“w;m lockdown Wm almrduu:
stili clossly monitared In order to astablish If an adjustment to the dafault rate from the amounte have bean settied within a ;BIIHW short period of
Impact of Covid, is warranted. To date , no necessary adjustiment has been identified. time, priar to tha financial year end. No credit [osses wers
Outstanding batances from major customers ane also coverad by credit Insurance - also experienced to date relating to the Impact of Covid. Tha strict
refer to note 29.1 Other finanolal assats have not been Impacted by tha the sconamic appllcalion of its credit control procseses proved Its value
fockdown. during this peciod.
Inventorles As standard practice the cammying value of Inventories (finfshad goods stock) are Low

disclosed at the lower of cost or net realisable velue. The net realisable value of pouliry
products In the market have been influenced by the general surplus of stock In the
market. This wae a result of tha lock down of tha QSR outlete and lower buying power of
consumers following portion of the population not eaming income at levala bafore the
lock down.

The group expertanced mare normalisad stock levels
towards the end of its financlal year, and the carrying value
as at the end of the year will be recovered through normal

trading activilies.

Non-Financial assets

The group was classified as an essential service provider and as result production and
{rading and precessing activities continued uninterrupted during the lock down period.

Low

Property, plant and Long term forecasts indicatas that tha ca value of
(qu.ﬂpmpl'FPE'. Negative Impact to trading profits were experisnced during tha second helf of the year es a:eh wlll ba recovered from fulre m"f,“ﬂ“m
Innglbles and goodwill) reault of the temporary closure of QSR cutiets and consumer spending behaviour during

the hard lockdown period. Thesa ware not regarded as Impakment Indicators as sales
have largely recovered as the lockdown move to level 1 towards the end of the financial
L1510
Golng concern The Impact to seles volumes u:uﬁ pricing hed an acdverse result on profitablitty, however Low
the group still operaled et a profit during the lockdown period. The group conducts lanca ahest and cash fiow
ancually, as stardard practics, detall four yer forecasts of profizbly, caphal | | auranrsen capabiien. 1Tia s muppertes oy & Sorg
expenditure, working capital requirements and cash flows. This ysar a more conservative Improvement I cash flows during the lest quarter of the
outiook wes assumed as result of the uncertainties following the outbreak of COVID 18, financial year,
Howaver there ere no Indications that the group will not be a going concem et any point
In tima In the future, nor are there any Indication of future liquidity Issuea. Any polantial
future volatilty In profitabiiity, which |s typioal of the businass anvironment In which the
Group oparates, |s reganded as normal business risks, and doss nat poss a golng
concem rigk for the Group.
Liquidity Negetive cash fiows were expertenced for a limited period of time during which finished Low

goed stock holding increased and payments from customars, which were impactsd by
the lockdown, were in arrears, Stockholding of eritical Input raw materials were Increasad
In order to sacure uninterrupted supply. All etock levels and the aging of frade
recelvables retumed to normality towards the end of the year. in spite of tha adverse
condllions as rasult of the lockdown, the group remained In a surplus cash postiion

thioughout the period.- refer o the statement of cash flows.

Apart from being In a net surplus cash position, the group Is
In good etanding with the banks and have access to sufficlent
facllties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

_for the year ended 30 September 2020

39. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policles applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial stateients are
set out below.

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financlal statements of Astral Foods Limited group have been prepared in
accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS") and the requirements of the
South African Companles Act.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The basis of preparation Is consistent with the prior year, except for the mandatory adoption of IFRS16
(Leases).

The preparation of financlal statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the group’s accounting policles. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexlity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
digclosed in the relevant notes fo the annual financial statements.

2. INTEREST IN GROUP ENTITIES
Subsidlaries

Subsidiarles are all entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the
group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from lts involvement with the entity and has the
abllity to affect those returns through Its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The group uses the acquisition method of acecunting to account for business combinations

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies
are ellminated.

Transactlons with non-controlling interests

The group treats transactions with non-controlling Interests as transactions with equity owners of the
group.

3. FOREIGN CURRENCIES
Functional and presentation currency
tems Included in the financial statements of each of the group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency’).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Rand, which is the company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances
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Foreign currency transactions are translated Into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settiement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and llabllities denominated in foreign cumrencles are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented In the statement of comprehensive income
within ‘finance income or costs’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within ‘Other (losses)/gains — net'.

Foreign Operations

The results and financial position of all group entities {none of which has the currency of a
hyperinfiationary economy) that have a functional currency different to the company's presentation
currency, are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

{i) Assets and liabllities at the closing exchange rate at the reporting date;

ii) Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions);

(i) Equity items are translated at the exchange rates ruiing when they arose.

All resulting exchange differences are classified as a foreign currency translation reserve and
recognised as a separate component of ather comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the transiation of the net investment In foreign
operations, and of borrowings which are long term Investments in nature, are taken to sharsholders’

equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and Habilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. '

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and bulldings comprise mainly of feed mills, poultry processing facllities, poultry farms and
cffices which are measured at historical cost.

Land is not depreciated and Its carrying value Is stated at historical cost.

Plant and equipment consists mainly of equipment used in the production of feed, feeding of birds in
poultry houses, hatchery equipment the slaughtering of poultry In abattoirs and the processing and
packaging of poultry meat products.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the Item will flow to
the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs are charged to profit or
loss during the financlal period in which they are incurred.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amounts.
These are included in profit or loss under other gains/losses.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitallsed during the perlod of time that Is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial perlod of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed annually and adjusted If appropriate, taking
into account technology developments and maintenance programs.
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5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer software

Acquired computer software and licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the spacific software.

Costs assoclated with maintaining computer software programs are recognised as an expense as
incurred.

Computer software recognized as assets are amortized, using the straight-line method, over their
ostimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives are reassessed on an annual basis.

6. LEASES

The accounting policies regarding leases are described in note 14 to the financial statements

7. INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises all purchase costs
of raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads {based on normal
operating capacity) incurred In bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Borrowing cost is excluded.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

8. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The value of live broiler birds and hatching eggs are assessed based on falr values less estimated
point-of-sale costs at appropriate reporting dates. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
values are recorded in cost of sales for the period in which they arise.

Breeding stock includes grandparent breeding and parent rearing and laying stock which are carried at
amortised costs.

All the expenses incurred in establishing and maintaining the assets are recognised In cost of sales.
All costs Incurred in acquiring biological assets are capitalised to the cost of the biological assets.

Assessment of control over contract growers

The Group utilizes contract growers for the growing of broilers in exchange for a fee. Goods dellvered
to contract growers are not recognised as revenue as the Group retains ownership of the goods.
These goods are recognised as biological assets. The Group assesses whether it exercises control
over contract growers based on an analysis of the activities of these entities, the Group's decision-
making powers, its ability to obtain benefits from these entitles and the residual risks regarding these
entities that are retained by the Group. Based on this analysis the Group concluded that it does not
control the activities of any contract grower, as it does not have any decision-making powers and that
these businesses are managed independently. Furthermore, these businesses retaln the residual risk
assoclated with production.

9. IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
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Separately recognised goodwill is iested annually for impairment and Is carrled at cost less
accumulated Impalrment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.

10. FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial assets are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument or secures other access to economic benefits. Such assets consist of cash, a contractual
right to recelve cash or ancther financlal asset. Financlai assets carried at reporting date include cash
and bank balances, investments in equity instruments, and receivables.
The group's recelvables are held to collect the contractual cash flows and are classified In the
following category:
o Amortised costs

Investmants in equity instruments are classified in the following category:
s  Fair value through other comprehensive income

Impairment

A loss allowance is calculated based on the lifetime expected credit losses of financial assets.

11. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financlal llabllities are recognised when there Is an obligation to transfer benefits and that obligation is
a contractual liability to deliver cash or another financlal assets or to exchange financial instruments
with ancther on potentially unfavourable terms.
All the financial liabilities have been classified as: Financlal liabilities at amortised costs.

12. TRADE RECEIVABLES
Adjustments in the provision for loss allowances is recognised In the statement of comprehensive
income under administrative expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible it Is written off in the
statement of comprehensive income or when previously written off amounts are recovered, it is
credited in the statement of comprehensive income, both within other gains/losses

13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, depasits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts,

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current llabllities on the statement of financial position.
14. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

15. BORROWINGS
Borrowings are recognised Initlally at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are

subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
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offective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current liabllities unless the group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

16. SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable te the Issue of new shares or options are shown In equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the company's equity share capital {ireasury shares), the
consideration pald, including any directly incremental costs, is deducted from equity attributable to the
company's equity holders until the shares are re-lssued or dispesed of.

17. CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAX

The charge for current tax is based on results for the year as adjusted for income that is exempt and
expenses that are not deductible using tax rates that are applicable to the taxable Income.

Deferred Income tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferrad tax ig not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax Is determined using tax rates {and laws) that have
been enacted or substantlally enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the
related deferrad tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assefs are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utllised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidlaries, joint ventures
and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference will not reverse In
the foreseeable future.

Upon the initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction which Is not a business
combination, and the recognition does not affect accounting profit or taxable profit at the time of the
transaction, the group has made the pollcy cholce to treat the asset and the liabllity separately for
deferred tax purposes..

18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to fareign exchange and
commodity price risks arising from operational activities.

Derivatives are Initlally recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered Into and ara
subsequently remeasured at falr value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging Instrument, and if so, the nature of the ltem being
hedged. It is the group's policy not to apply hedge accounting.

Derlvatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Such derivatives are classified as
at falr value through profit or loss, and changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately under other income/expenses in the
statement of comprehensive income.
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Over-the-counter (OTC) contracts

The group enters inte over-the-counter (OTC) forward purchases for the purchase of commodities for
own use. These contracts are settled by taking physical delivery in the normal course of buginess and
are therefore not regarded as flnanclal instruments.

Falr value estimation

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade recelvables is assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabliities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is avallable to the
group for similar financlal instruments.

19. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Penslon obligations
The group operates defined contribution retirement schemes.

A defined contribution scheme is a pension plan under which the group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The group recognises the expense In the statement of comprehensive income as an
employee benefit expanse.

The group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

Post-employment medical benefits

The group provides post-retirement healthcare benefits to some of its retirees. The entittement to
these benefits is usually conditional on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age. The
expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment using the same
accounting methodology as used for defined benefit pension plans.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments, and changes in actuarlal assumptions,
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income. These obligations are valued every year, and
the assumptions are reviewed annually, by independent qualified actuarles.

Termination banefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the group before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according to a detalled formal plan without possibility of withdrawal;
or providing terminatlon benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans
The group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the company's shareholders. These profit sharing

and bonus plans are approved annually by the board.

The group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Long-term retention bonus scheme

The group has a long-term retention bonus scheme for certain employees. In terms of the scheme,
25% of the allocated amount is guaranteed, and for certain employees, 75% Is subject to specified
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performance conditions measured over a three-year perlod being met. Allocations from 1 October
2018 onwards are 100% subject to performances conditions for all employees.

Once vested, amounts are pald at the end of the three year vesting period.

The fair value of the employees’' service received in exchange for participation in the scheme, is
recognised as an expense over the vesting period.

Share-based plans

The share optilon scheme which [s equity settled, provides the right to purchase shares in the
company at the exercise price. The contractual life of options granted Is seven years. The options
vest one third after each of the third, fourth and fifth year of date of granting the cption. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised. The falr valus of the employee service received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase In
equity. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market conditions. Non-market
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected tc vest. The
group recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the statement of
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The grant by the group of options over its equity Instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the group Is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services
recelved, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognisad over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the
parent entity accounts

The fair value calculations are done by external consultants.

The forfeltable share plan which is equity settled, afford employaas the opportunity to own shares in
Astral through awarding of forfeitable shares. Participants recelves the shares, with voting and
dividend rights, on the date of the award subject to performance conditions and the risk of forfeiture
during a three year vesting period.

The shares acquired and subsequently awarded are disclosed as treasury shares.

The falr value of the employee service received in exchange for the awarding of the shares is based on
the market value of the shares on grant date. The amount to be expensed over the three year vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value of the shares awarded, adjusted the impact of non
market conditions on the assumptions of the number of shares that is expected to vest.

Dividends recelved by participants during the vesting period is regarded as a cash settled portion of
the scheme and Is recognised as an employee benefit expense as and when dividends are paid

20. REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises the falr value of the consideration received or recelvable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the group’s activities. Revenus is shown net of value-added tax,
returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the group. Refer to note 1 of the
financial statements for a description of the revenue streams of the group.

The group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the
group's activities as described below:

¢ Pouliry — sales of poultry products are recognized when the products are delivered at the premises

of the customer;
¢ Feed - sales of feed are recognized when the feed Is delivered at the farm as agreed with the
customer or when a customer collects it from the feadmills
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In all Instances, sales are racognised when upon delivery, the customer has accepted the products;
and collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

Volume rebates and settlement discounts are deducted from revenue where they can be reliably
measured.

In the prior year, the Group made use of an Intermediary company which purchased finlshed goods
from the group, and sold these to the retal! market. Significant judgements were made by management
when concluding whether the intermediary was transacting as an agent or as a principal. The
assessment required an analysis of key indicators, specifically whether the Intermediary:

carried any inventory risk;

had the primary responsibliity for providing the goods or services to the retall market;
had the latitude to influence pricing; and

exercised control over the finished goods.

These indicators were used to determine whether significant risks and rewards associated with the
sale of goods have passed to the intermediary company. Where significant risks and rewards have not
transferred to the intermediary company, revenue is recognised when the goods are sold to the retall
market.

Where the group delivers finished goods to another party for sale to end customers, the group
evaluates whether the other party has obtained control of the finished goods at that point in time.
Finished goods that have been delivered to another party are held in a consignment arrangement
when the other party has not obtained control of the product. The group does not recognize revenue
whera finished goods are delivered to another party If the finished goods are held on consignment.
This assessment required analysis of key indicators, specifically:
o The group retaing ¢control over the finished goads until a specified event occurs, which is the
sale of the finished goods to a customaer;
e The group is able to require the return of the finished goods or can transfer the finished
goods to a third party;
o The other party does not have the unconditional obligation to pay for the product.

21. INTEREST INCOME

Interest iIncome on financial assets at amortised cost and financlal assets at FYOCI Is calculated using
the effective Interast method and is recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

22. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Accounting policy developments Include new standards Issued, amendments to standards, and
interpretations issued on current standards.
There are no new standards and Interpretations that Is expected to impact the financial statements and

reporting of the group.



